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“Investment in capital market involves certain degree of risks. The investors are required to
read the prospectus and risk factors carefully, assess their own financial conditions and risk-

taking ability before making their investment decisions.”
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(a) Preliminary Information and Declaration

(i) Name(s), address(s), telephone number(s), web address(s), e- mail(s), FAX number(s)
and contact persons of the issuer, issue manager(s), underwriter(s), auditors, credit
rating company and valuer, where applicable:

Name and Address

Contact Person

Telephone Number, FAX Number,
E- Mail, Web Address

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

Registered Address: House # 68,
Road # 11, Block - H, Banani,
Dhaka-1213

Mr. Mohammad Imran
Hossain
Company Secretary

Tel: +880255041951-7

Fax: +880255041997

Email: info@banglacatrental.com
Web: www.banglacatrental.com

ISSUE MANAGER

NDB Capital Limited
57 & 57/A, UDAY Tower, 6t Floor,
Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212

Mr. Kazi Farhan Zahir
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

Phone: +88 02 222 288 979
E-mail: farhan@ndbcapital.com
Web: www.ndbcapital.com

UNDERWRITER(S)

LankaBangla Investments
Limited

Assurance Nazir Tower (Level-08),
65/B, Kemal Ataturk Avenue,
Banani, Dhaka - 1213

Mr. Iftekhar Alam
Chief Executive Officer

Phone: +88 02 550 348 533-5
E-mail: info@lankabangla-investments.com
Web: www.lankabangla-investments.com

EBL Investments Limited
Bangladesh Shipping Corporation
Tower, 2-3 RAJUK Avenue (4th

Mr. Omar Faroque Riyad

Phone: +880-2-47111096
E-mail: riyad@eblinvestments.com

Head of O ti
Floor), Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000 cad ot Uperations Web: www.eblinvestments.com
AUDITOR
Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Head Office: H t Tel: 02-41032557
ea fce: Hometown Mohammed Alamgir ¢

Apartments (Flat-C, Level-15), 87
New Eskaton Road, Dhaka-1000.
Branch Office: Sultana Tower

2 No. Kalabagan, Mirpur Road,
Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1205

Kabir, FCA, FLMI, ARA
Partner

Mobile: +08801914142507
e-mail: alamgirkabir@yahoo.com
Web: www.kzkc.com




Declaration:

(ii) “If you have any query about this document. You may consult the issuer, issue manager and
underwriter”

(iii) “CONSENT OF THE BANGLADESH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION HAS BEEN OBTAINED
TO THE ISSUE/OFFER OF THESE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ORDINANCE,
1969, AND THE BANGLADESH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (QUALIFIED INVESTOR
OFFER BY SMALL CAPITAL COMPANY) RULES, 2022. IT MUST BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT
IN GIVING THIS CONSENT THE COMMISSION DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF THE ISSUER COMPANY, ANY OF ITS PROJECTS OR THE ISSUE PRICE OF
ITS SECURITIES OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF ANY OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINION
EXPRESSED WITH REGARD TO THEM. SUCH RESPONSIBILITY LIES WITH THE ISSUER, ITS
DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, MANAGING DIRECTOR, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,
COMPANY SECRETARY, ISSUE MANAGER, ISSUE MANAGER’'S CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
UNDERWRITERS, AUDITOR(S) AND/OR VALUER (IF ANY).”

(iv) Risks in relation to the First Issue’
“This being the first issue of the issuer, there has been no formal market for the securities
of the issuer. The face value of the securities is BDT 10.00 (BDT Ten), and the issue price is
BDT 10.00 (BDT Ten), i.e. of the face value. The issue price as determined should not be
taken to be indicative of the market price of the securities after listing. No assurance can be
given regarding an active or sustained trading of the securities or the price after listing.”

(v) ‘General Risk’

"Investment in securities involves a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds
in this offer unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are
advised to read the risk factors carefully before making an investment decision in this offer.
For making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the
issuer and the offer including the risks involved. Given the emerging nature of small capital
companies, there may be a higher investment risk attached to the securities being offered.
The securities to be traded on the Small Capital (SME) Platform may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be an active market for trading of such securities. The securities have not
been recommended by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) nor
does BSEC guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Specific attention of
investors is invited to the statement of ‘risk factors’ given on page number(s) 10-12"

(vi) ‘Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. 's Absolute Responsibility’
“The issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms
that this prospectus contains all material information with regard to the issuer and the
issue, that the information contained in the prospectus is true, fair and correct in all
material aspects and are not misleading in any respect, that the opinions and intentions
expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which
make this document as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such
opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.”




(b) AVAILIBILITY OF PROSPECTUS

(i) Website addresses and e-mail addresses and names of contact persons of the
institutions where the prospectus is available in soft form;

Issuer

Contact Person

Website and E-mail Address

Bangla Trac Rental
Services PLC.

Mohammad Imran Hossain
Company Secretary

Web: www.banglacatrental.com
Email:
imran.hossain@banglacatrental.com

Issue Manager

Contact Person

Website and E-mail Address

NDB Capital Limited

Kazi Farhan Zahir

Website: www.ndbcapital.com
E-mail Address:

Managing Director & CEO farhan@ndbcapital.com
Stock Exchange(s) Contact Person Website and E-mail Address
Mr. Mohammed Mahfuzur Rahman
Dhaka Stock Exchange Assistant General Manager & Head of | Web: www.dsebd.org
LTD. Index Management, Data Services Email: imdsp@dse.com.bd
and Publication Department
Chittagong Stock Mr. Mohammad Habib Ullah Web: www.cse.com.bd
Exchange LTD. Deputy Manager Email: habib.ullah@cse.com.bd

Prospectus would also be available on the website of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) (www.sec.gov.bd) and at the library room of the BSEC for reading and studying

upon approval.




(ii) Definitions and Acronyms or elaboration.

ACRONYMS/ELABORATIONS

A

AGM Annual General Meeting
Allotment Letter of Allotment of Shares

“Articles” or “Articles of Association” or
“AoA’

The Articles of Association of Bangla Trac
Rental Services PLC.

B
BB Bangladesh Bank
BDT Bangladeshi Taka
BIDA Bangladesh Investment Development Authority
BMRE Balanc1pg, Modernization, Rehabilitation &
Expansion
BO Account Beneficial Owners Account
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
BSEC .
Commission
BTRSL Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
BOD Board of Directors
C
CDBL Central Depository Bangladesh Limited
CIB Credit Information Bureau
CFO Chief Financial Officer
o Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission o
Commission
Company Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

Companies Act

Companies Act, 1994

Corporate Office

Head Office of the Company

CSE Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited
D

DCT Deputy Commissioner of Taxes
DSE Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

E

E -mail Electronic Mail

EPS Earnings Per Share




Els Eligible Investors

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting
F

FC Account Foreign Currency Account

FCA Fellow Chartered Accountants
FDR Fixed Deposit Receipt

FY Financial Year

G

GBP Great Britain Pound

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GP General Public

H

HSIA Hazrat Shahjalal International Airport
I

Issue Qualified Investor Offer (QIO)
Issuer Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

Issue Manager

NDB Capital Limited

[FRS International Financial Reporting Standards
IAS International Accounting Standards

L

L/C Letter of Credit

M

MD Managing Director

MOA or Memorandum of Association

The Memorandum of Association of Bangla
Trac Rental Services PLC.

N

NBFI Non-Bank Financial Institution
NAV Net Asset Value

NBR National Board of Revenue
NDB NDB Capital Limited

NRB Non-Resident Bangladeshi
NOC No Objection Certificate

0

Our Company

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.




Price of the share of Bangla Trac Rental

Offer Price Services PLC. being offered

P

P/E Price to Earnings Ratio

Q

QIO Qualified Investor Offer

R

RJSC Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Rules Commission (Qualified Investor Offer by Small
Capital Companies) Rules, 2022

S

Sponsors The sponsor shareholders of Bangla Trac
Rental Services PLC.

Securities Shares of Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

Securities Market

The Share Market of Bangladesh

SME

Small & Medium Enterprise

STD A/C Short Term Deposit Account
Subscription Application Money

T

The Company / Issuer Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
TIN Tax Identification Number

Tk. Bangladeshi Taka

U

UK Pound United Kingdom Pound

USD United States Dollar

\'

VAT Value Added Tax

w

WDV Written Down Value

WPPF Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Y

Y-oY Year on Year

Vi



SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE

Vi



Qualified Investor Offer of Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. was incorporated as a Private Limited Company on March 27, 2012
and subsequently converted into a Public Limited Company under Companies Act 1994 on September
01, 2022 with the registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Dhaka.

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. provides equipment on rent to numerous conglomerates across the
nation to both private projects and government projects. The company also provides Rental Power
solutions in the form of rental generators. Their rental generator sets have been designed and
engineered for easier transportation, faster installation, and simpler maintenance.

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. provides a wide variety of equipment solutions to its customers at
different price points. Their rental fleet includes well-maintained Diesel Generator, Gas Generator,
Construction & Industrial Equipment such as Excavators, Wheel Loaders, Bulldozers, Forklifts,
Hydraulic Drilling Rig, Crawler Cranes, Rough Terrain Cranes, Low Bed Trailers, and more. They offer
both short-term and long-term rentals of equipment. With their technical expertise, excellent support
and service, exemplary standards, and nationwide network, they provide outstanding services to
their stakeholders. The following are some ways in which their Rental Store differentiates itself as a
rental equipment solutions provider: both new and CAT Certified used machines in their rental fleet,
a rent-to-purchase option, fuel-efficient equipment with minimal downtime, 24/7 service, trained
operators to maximize productivity, and work tools for versatile use.

A few of their notable projects and customers include, for Equipment Rental: Padma Bridge Project,
Taxi-Way at Dhaka Airport, Dhaka Chittagong 4-Lane Highway, Kuril Flyover, Dhaka-Mymensingh
Highway, the Mongla-Ghasiakhali River Channel, BD Army (20 ECB and 26 ECB), Sylhet City
Corporation, PRAN RFL Group, Adani Port and Special Economic Zone, Abdul Monem LTD.,,
CHONGQING International, China Harbour Engineering Co. LTD., Mir Akter Hossain LTD., and CEEC
Tianjin Electric Power, and for Power Rental: BEXIMCO LTD., COATS Bangladesh LTD., Incepta
Pharmaceuticals LTD., Akij Bakers LTD., Square Fashions LTD., Coca-Cola Bangladesh Beverages,
Unilever Bangladesh, Bangladesh Cricket Board (Asia Cup, T20 World Cup), DTG Fair, National Board
of Revenue (Income Tax & VAT Fair), Payra Power Plant, Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Shilpa Nagar
(Mirsarai, Chattogram), Padma Railway Bridge, Jamuna Railway Bridge Construction Project, and
Matarbari Power Plant.

viii



Features of the Issue:

BDT 10.00

8,500,000

BDT 85,000,000

NDB Capital Limited

1) EBL Investments Limited
2) LankaBangla Investments Limited

1) To expand the existing business
2) To meet QIO Expenses

Within 24 months from receiving QIO fund
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(a) The address and telephone number of the company, the issue manager, the
underwriters, the auditor, and the stock exchange(s).

Issuer
Name Address Contact Details
Bangla Trac Rental Registered Address: House # 68, Road | Tel: +880255041951-7

Services PLC.

# 11, Block # H, Banani, Dhaka - 1213

Fax: +880255041997

Issue Manager(s)

Name Address Contact Details
UDAY TOWER, 6th Floor (South-West )
NDB Capital Limited Side) 57 & 57/A, Gulshan Avenue, Tel: +88029888626

Circle-1, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

Fax: +88029888906

Underwriter (s)

Name

Address

Contact Details

EBL Investments Limited

Bangladesh Shipping Corporation
Tower, 2-3 RAJUK Avenue (4th Floor),
Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000

Tel: +880247111096,47111867,
47112659, Ext: 100

LankaBangla
Investments Limited

Assurance Nazir Tower (Level-08),
65/B, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani,
Dhaka - 1213

Tel: +88 02 550 34 853-5
Fax: +88 02 550 34 856

Auditor

Name Address Contact Details
Head Office: Home Town Apartments
(Flat-C, Level-15), 87 New Eskaton

Kazi Zahir Khan & C Road, Dhaka-1000. Tel: 02-41032557

azi Zahir Khan 0., a

Chartered Accountants Branch Office: Sultana Tower 2 No. Z{E}:ile_ .a:grsrls?rll?aﬁ:g)zzg; com
Kalabagan, Mirpur Road, Dhanmondi, ’ st y '
Dhaka-1205

Stock Exchange(s)

Name Address Contact Details

Dhaka Stock Exchange " Tel: 02-9564601

Limited 9/F Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000 Fax: 02-9564601

Chittagong Stock CSE Building, 1080, Sk. Mujib Road Tel: +880 2333314632-3

Exchange Limited

Agrabad, Chittagong, Bangladesh

Fax: +880 2333314101




SECTION -1

Risk Factors and Management’s Perception about the
Risks




According to the management of Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. (BTRSL), the company is subject
to the following micro and macro-economic risks-

(a) Interest Rate Risk-

Interest Rate Risk is related to the fluctuations in the prevailing interest rate in the market
which result in an increased cost of debt for a company. Various macro-economic conditions
including but not limited to- contractionary monetary policy, austerity in governments
budget, availability and growth of private sector credit can lead to volatility in the interest
rate in the country. An increase in interest rate can adversely impact the financial
performance of the company due to higher financial expenses and decrease the profit of the
company and subsequent profit distribution to shareholders.

Management perception:

The management of BTRSL always strives to prudently manage its finances to maintain an
ideal capital structure so that the cost of capital and the debt portion of the cost of capital
remains stable. The company has relatively low interest- bearing debt in its balance sheet and
thus any undue shock from interest rate risk is mitigated.

(b) Exchange Rate Risk-

Exchange Rate Risk is defined as the risk of loss that the company bears when the transaction
is denominated in a currency other than the money in which the company operates. It is a
risk that occurs due to a change in the relative values of currencies.

Management perception:

BTRSL is exposed to minimal exchange rate risk as the company acquires its machinery from
the local market in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) and earns its rental proceeds in the same
currency.

(c) Industry Risk-

The chance that a set of factors particular to an industry group drags down the industry’s
overall performance. It may arise from the competitive nature of the industry or the lack
there of barriers to entry and other factors.

Management perception:

Due to the nature of the business, it's very difficult for a new entrant to suddenly capture
market share from BTRSL in both power and machine rental segments. High capital intensity,
existing brand value of Caterpillar Inc., competitive pricing of its products and superior
service quality help BTRSL to minimize industry risk.



(d) Market Risk-

Market risk is the risk that any change in the market such as demand of the product, foreign
exchange rates fluctuation, prices of the product, increase of competition, a squeeze of
business through the cancellation of work order, shifting of the buyer to another market will
affect the company's business. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

Management perception:

The veteran management team of BTRSL maintains the dynamics of the market prudently
and thus any sudden and undue risk related to the market is unlikely.

(e) Potential or existing government regulations-

0

The Company operates under Companies Act, Taxation policy adopted by NBR, Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)’s Rules and Rules adopted by other regulatory
bodies. Any abrupt changes in the policies formed by those bodies will impact the business
of The Company adversely.

Management perception:

The economy of Bangladesh has been developing over the decades because of business-
friendly Rules and Regulations adopted by the various regulatory bodies of the country.
Unless any adverse policies are taken, which may materially affect the industry, the business
of The Company will not be affected. The government emphasizes the growth of the local
industry to meet the local need. our government is encouraging industry with investment-
friendly policy measures.

Potential or existing changes in global or national policies-

Changes in the existing global or national policies can have either positive or negative impacts
for the company. Any scarcity or price hike, global or national policy change, potential geo-
political conflicts may hamper profitability.

Management perception:

Geopolitical risk remains as one of the pressing issues to the companies related to
export/import of materials outside/inside the country. BTRSL is dependent upon import of
Machineries from Caterpillar Inc. USA and thus continuously monitors the geopolitical
conditions of the world for smooth operation. It also maintains liaison with various
government entities for its day-to-day operation. Consequently, any sudden and damaging



changes in global/national policies will be mitigated through the existing risk mitigation
policy of the company.

(g) History of Non-Operation, if any-

Initially, this business was operated under Bangla Trac LTD. The company, Bangla Trac
Rental Services PLC. was incorporated on March 27, 2012 but was yet to commence its
commercial operation under this name. This business continued its operation under Bangla
Trac LTD. till the beginning of 2019. As the demand increased, this unit was spun off to Bangla
Trac Rental Services PLC. in February of 2019 to utilize the potential growth opportunity.

(h) Operational Risk-

)

Operational risk is the possibility of suffering a financial setback due to internal procedures,
personnel, and system failures or uncontrollable outside factors. Due to a lack of internal
controls and compliance within the bank, operational risk can also result from mistakes and
fraud.

Management Perception:

The internal operational risk management process at BTRSL explains how the company
controls its operational risk by identifying, assessing, monitoring, controlling, and mitigating
the risk, addressing operational risk events, and putting in place any additional procedures
necessary to comply with regulatory requirements. Different levels of management within
the company are given the duty of operational risk management. Information systems are
used to create suitable, frequent management reporting as well as to track the discovery and
evaluation of operational risks.

Risk Relating to Secondary Trading of Securities-

The Secondary Market offers many opportunities for investing. However, secondary market
exhibits a higher risk than the loans that would be seen in the Primary Market. The earnings
and return expectations, the risk components of the secondary market largely correspond to
those of IPO. A secondary market can have liquidity risks. The liquidity risk recedes if a
sufficiently solvent issuer guarantees repayment of the invested capital at any time. Due to
the short maturity, the liquidity sensitivity of these instruments is lower than that of bank
deposit.

Management Perception:

The management of the company understand the thread of liquidity crisis and thus maintains
an optimum capital structure with ample liquid assets to smoothly conduct the day-to-day
operation and avoid any sort of risks raised which may occur during trading in secondary
market of the company.



SECTION-II

Use of Proceeds




a) The prospectus shall show how the net proceeds of the offering shall be used, indicating
the amount to be used for each purpose:

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. (BTRSL) will raise capital from the qualified investors through
Qualified Investor Offer (QIO0). Details of the particulars including the subsequent utilization of
the QIO proceeds are given below-

Source of fund:

Particulars Amount

Number of Shares to be Issued under QIO 8,500,000
Issue Price BDT 10
Total Amount to be Raised through QIO BDT 85,000,000

Utilization of Proceeds from Qualified Investor Offer (QIO)

Particulars Amount in BDT

Business Expansion 81,624,414
QIO Expenses 3,375,586
Total 85,000,000

Breakdown of use of net QIO proceeds:

1. Business Expansion

SL. | Particulars Amount in BDT
1 | Purchase of Capital Machineries 81,624,414
Total 81,624,414

(i) Purchase of Capital Machineries
Amount in BDT

SL. Particulars Quantity Unit Price Total Price
1 Caterpillar Brand New Hydraulic 4 11,042,391 44169564
Excavator
2 Caterplllellr Brand New Generator with 4 9,363,713 37,454,850
Accessories
Total 81,624,414




2. Estimated QIO Expense:

Sl. | Type of Fees Description of the Fees Amount BDT
Issue Management Fees 345,000.00
A | Issue Manager's Fees Maximum of BDT 500,000 300,000.00
Vat against [ssue Manager's Fees | 15% of Issue Management Fees 45,000.00
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Fees 135,000.00
B | Application Fees At Actual 50,000.00
BSEC Consent Fees 0.10% of QIO Amount 85,000.00
Fees Related to Listing with the Stock Exchange(s) 522,132.00
Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) 261,066.00
Prospectus Scrutiny Fee for DSE | At Actual 25,000.00
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Initial Listing Fee for DSE 0.10% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 192,555.00
capital @ 0.05%
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Annual Listing Fee for DSE 0.025% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 43,511.00
C capital @ 0.01%
Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) 261,066.00
Prospectus Scrutiny Fee for CSE At Actual 25,000.00
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Initial Listing Fee for CSE 0.10% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 192,555.00
capital @ 0.05%
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Annual Listing Fee for CSE 0.025% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 43,511.00
capital @ 0.01%
Underwriting Commission 122,187.50
D Underwriting Commission 0.5% on the underwritten amount 106,250.00
Xixri?;rslis(;crll.]nderwrltmg 15% on the underwriting commission 15,937.50
CDBL Fees and Expenses 651,266.50
Security Deposit At Actual 500,000.00
Documentation Fee At Actual 2,500.00
E Annual Fee At Actual 100,000.00
&OOIL‘;E’C?‘Z’“MF;‘;}(SDT S00Per 1 A Actual 6,000.00
QIO Fee F@:;i(:jls;bcg;zlue size+.015% of Pre-QIO 42,766.50
Post QIO Expenses 600,000.00
F | PostIssue Management Fee Estimated: To be paid at Actual 400,000.00
Subscription Related Expenses Estimated: To be paid at Actual 200,000.00
G Prospectus Publication & Others 600,000.00
Publication of Prospectus Estimated: To be paid at Actual 200,000.00
H | Miscellaneous Expenses Estimated: To be paid at Actual 400,000.00

Total

A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H

3,375,586.00




(b) The prospectus shall also include a schedule mentioning the stages ofimplementation and
utilization of funds received through public offering, mentioning about the approximate date
of completion of the project and the projected date of full commercial operation. The schedule
shall be signed by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the issuer:

. Approximate date of Projected date of full
Particulars | Progress made so far . . .
Completion commercial operation
) The company will start . . .
Business . Within 24 months after | Within 24 months after receiving
Expansion the work after receipt receiving QIO fund QIO fund
p of QIO fund. & ) '
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin Mr. Abdullah Al Kafy
Chairman Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

(c) If there are contracts covering any of the activities of the issuer for which the proceeds of
sale of securities are to be used, such as contracts for the purchase of land or contracts for
the construction of buildings, the issuer shall disclose the terms of such contracts, and copies
of the contracts shall be enclosed as annexure to the prospectus:

There is no such contract yet to be engaged by the company.

Terms of contract:

As per Annexure-E (B)(05)(C) of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Qualified
Investor Offer by Small Capital Companies) Rules 2022 there is no contract covering any of the
activities of the issuer company for which the proceeds of sale of securities from QIO is to be used.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin Mr. Abdullah Al Kafy
Chairman Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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SECTION-III

Description of Business
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(a) The date on which the issuer company was incorporated, commenced operation and the
nature of the business which it is engaged in along with its subsidiary:

Operation

Date of _ 27-Mar-2012
Incorporation
Date of Commercial 27_Feb-2019

Nature of Business

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. provides a wide variety of
equipment solutions to its customers at different price points.
Their rental fleet includes well-maintained Diesel Generator, Gas
Generator, Construction & Industrial Equipment such as
Excavators, Wheel Loaders, Bulldozers, Forklifts, Hydraulic
Drilling Rig, Crawler Cranes, Rough Terrain Cranes, Low Bed
Trailers, and more. They offer both short-term and long-term
rentals of equipment. With their technical expertise, excellent
support and service, exemplary standards, and nationwide
network, they provide outstanding services to their stakeholders.
The following are some ways in which their Rental Store
differentiates itself as a rental equipment solutions provider:
both new and CAT Certified used machines in their rental fleet, a
rent-to-purchase option, fuel-efficient equipment with minimal
downtime, 24/7 service, trained operators to maximize
productivity, and work tools for versatile use.

Subsidiary
Company

The company has no subsidiary company

12



(b) The prospectus shall contain the information in respect of its business operation, for
example:
(i) The principal products or services of the company and the markets for such products
or services-

Services Provided by Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
The Rental Store

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. brings the strength of Caterpillar brand, the global leader in
heavy equipment and industrial power solutions coupled with diverse and unrivaled
products, supports, and customer services. We pledge to offer reliable and effective power
solutions to safeguard our customers’ investment/s. Our 24 /7 service availability makes sure
that our customers are attended round the clock. We, at Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,,
deliver a consistently expedient customer experience by offering unsurpassed support
service and a diverse range of CAT products, work tools and equipment. We have the most
modern tools and highly trained service personnel to back all the Caterpillar products in our
inventory. To attend customer need with higher efficacy, we have two main divisions namely,
the Rental Power Solutions and the Rental Machine Solutions.

Machine Rental

At our Rental Store, customers are offered a wider range of Machine Rental solutions - new,
used, and rent-to-use options, at different
price points to choose from. Our machine
rental fleet encompasses new and well-
maintained used equipment like Excavators,
Wheel Loaders, Bulldozers, Forklifts, Drilling
Rig, Cranes, Trailers and many more. We offer
both short-and long-term rentals of new and
used machines. Our technical expertise,
round-the-clock support and service,
exemplary standards and nationwide
network allow us to give unsurpassed °
services to our stakeholders.

e
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Power Rental

We are the leading Power Rental solutions provider in the country and have been providing
our esteemed patrons with reliable power in the most productive and cost-effective way. We
harbor a large fleet of generators ranging from 200KVA to 1,300KVA with a total fleet capacity
of more than 20MW. This allows us to meet the demands of any magnitude in the right way.
The rental generator sets that we provide have been designed and engineered for easier
transportation, faster installation, and simpler maintenance. Designed to work alone or in
redundancy, these generators are guaranteed to meet customers’ ultimate power need with
maximum efficacy. Additionally, our Caterpillar generators have been maintained and
serviced to the highest standard using original CAT parts and highly experienced engineers
to guarantee the CAT quality.

Industry Wide Exposure

During its long presence, Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. has acquired significant
specialization in Power and Machine Rental. As one of the leading providers in Power
Generation and Infrastructure Development Industry, Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. has
been contributing to the growth of the following industrial sector of Bangladesh.

o Textiles & RMG Industry

¢ Pharmaceutical Industry

» Steel Re-Rolling Industry

» Agro-Processing Industry

* Food and Beverage Industry
¢ Chemical Industry

e Construction Industry

Past Revenue Trend: Amount in BDT
R 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
EVENUe 1137925157 | 266,806,814 | 312,083,666 | 293,271,972 | 277,621,054

(ii) If the company has more than one product or service, the relative contribution to sales
and income of each product or service that accounts for more than 10% of the
company’s total revenues:

SL | Product/Service Name Relat(nX: (():;) ; (t)rll::zlg gzt (3))Sales
1 Revenue From Engine 62.91%
2 Revenue From Machine 20.22%
3 Used Equipment 13.32%
4 Other Revenue 3.55%
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business:

Not applicable.

Customer contacts
for rental service

Invoice & payment
cycle continues
until maturity of
agreement/termin
ation of agreement

Upon completion of
agreed rental period

Equipment is

immediately returned
to the BTRSL Rental

Yard.

(iv) How the products or services are distributed

Sales person
provides
offer/quotation

Customer makes
payment as per
inovice

This cycle continues
recurrently

Customer agrees
with rental and
executes a work
order or
agreement.

Monthly invoice is
generated and sent
to customer

(iii) Names of associates, subsidiary/related holding company and their core areas of

Equipment is
delivered at
customers'

designated site
from rental fleet

Rental service is
provided over a
period specified in
work order
/agreement
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(v) Competitive conditions in the business:

The heavy machinery industry in Bangladesh has experienced remarkable expansion in
the past decade, primarily driven by the government's initiatives to industrialize the
country and the completion of mega projects such as the Padma Bridge, Karnaphuli
Tunnels, HSIA Terminal 3, and Dhaka Metro Rail. While the industry heavily relies on
imports due to the challenges of local manufacturing, local conglomerates such as Bangla
Trac, Energypac, and Runner have strategically partnered with globally renowned heavy
machinery manufacturers to offer competitive pricing on both new and older machines to
local companies.

The heavy machinery industry has witnessed exponential growth, with its value increasing
from BDT 1 billion in 2001 to BDT 20 billion last year. This growth clearly indicates the
abundance of opportunities available for all stakeholders involved. Among the market
players, Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. has emerged as the market leader, thanks to its
affiliation with Bangla Trac Limited, the sole authorized dealer of Caterpillar Inc. USA in
the country. Bangla Trac's superior machinery quality and attractive renting services
offered through Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. has taken the company to a whole new
league in terms of Machine & Power Rental services in the country. BTRSL has a wide
variety of heavy machineries and more than 20MW power rental capacity. None of its
competitors has enough capacity, brand value, strong supply chain and service quality in
either machine or power rental to significantly impact the market share of BTRSL.

(vi) Sources and availability of raw materials and the names of the principal suppliers

Since the business nature of the company is not manufacturing in nature, there is no issue
of usage of raw materials. However, the company procures a significant amount spare parts
for the purpose of maintenance and service of caterpillar branded equipment. Bangla Trac
Limited, as an exclusive dealer of Caterpillar products, procurement of spare parts is made
by the previously mentioned company.

(vii) Sources of, and requirement for, power, gas and water; or any other utilities

Utilities Requirement Sources
. The company has REB connection of
Electricity N/A 250 KVA.
Gas N/A N/A
Water is drawn by own deep Tube well
Water N/A and stored in storage tank (6,000-liter

capacity) for regular usage.

16



(viii) Names of the customers who purchase 10% or more of the company’s products

/services:
Amount in BDT
Name Total revenue (30 June 2023) Percentage
Bangladesh Export Import Co. LTD. 40,440,000 12.78%

(ix) Description of any contract which the company has with its principal suppliers or
customers showing the total amount and quantity of transaction for which the contract
is made and the duration of the contract:

The Company has no material contract with any supplier or customers.

(x) Description of any material patents, trademarks, licenses, or royalty agreements:

The Company does not have any material patents, licenses, or royalty agreements. It has
several regulatory licenses and certificate to continue its operation.

(xi) Number of total employees and number of full-time employees:

The Company currently employs 114 people overall. 17 of those are executives and officers.
Remaining employees are supervisors, operators, technicians, and helpers of rental machines
and generators. All officers and executives are full-time and permanent employees, and the
remaining employees are on a contractual basis.

It should be noted that no employees were paid less than Tk. 9,000.00 (Nine thousand) per
month.

(xii) Production or service rendering capacity and current utilization, where applicable:

Not applicable.

17



SECTION-IV

Description of Property
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The written down value of property, plant & equipment’s owned by the company as per audited
accounts as on 31 January 2023 are stated below:

Amount in BDT

. Written down value

S5 | BT G T as on 30t June 2023
1 | Land & Land Developments 68,105,027
2 | Building and Construction 1,669,701
3 | Generator & Machine 535,134,870
4 | Other Machineries & Tools 231,709
5 | Office Equipment 17,819
6 | IT Equipment 159,668
Total 605,318,794

(a) Location of the principal plants and other property of the company and the condition
thereof:

All the assets are in good working condition. The above-mentioned assets are located at the
following address:

Condition of the

Particulars Location & Area
Property
Land & Land Mathbari, Bortultek Mouza, P.O: Ulukhola, Good condition
Developments Upazila: Kaliganj, District: Gazipur
Building Rental Yard, Baro Quater, DT road Pahartali, Good condition
Chattogram
Generator & Machine Mathbarl, K?tun.Mo.uzg, P.O: Ulukhola, Worlgpg in good
Upazila: Kaliganj, District: Gazipur condition
Other Machineries & | Mathbari, Ketun Mouza, P.O: Ulukhola, Working in good
Tools Upazila: Kaliganj, District: Gazipur condition
Office Equipment House # 68, Road # 11, Block - H, Banani, Working in good
quip Dhaka-1213 condition
House # 68, Road # 11, Block - H, Banani, Working in good

IT Equipment Dhaka-1213 condition




(b) Whether the property is owned by the company or taken on lease
All the above-mentioned assets are owned by the company.

(c) If the property is owned by the company, whether there is a mortgage or other type of
lien on the property, with name of the mortgagor.

The company's land and other assets are unencumbered by any mortgages. However, Islamic
Finance & Investment Ltd., one of the lenders, has established a charge on the company's fixed
and floating assets, which has been duly recorded with the R]JSC. Additionally, the same lender
has placed a hypothecation on twelve units of equipment, valued at BDT 8,45,99,203.

(d) If the property is taken on lease, the expiration date of the lease with name of the lessor;

The company does not have any property taken on lease.
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SECTION-V

Plan of Operation and Discussion of Financial Condition
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(i) Iftheissuer has not started its commercial operation, the company’s plan of operations
for the period which would be required to start commercial operation which shall,
among others, include:

Not applicable for Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. as the company has already started its

operation.

(ii) If the issuer had been in operation, the issuer’s revenue and results from operation,
financial position and changes in financial position and cash flows for the last five years
or from commercial operation, which is shorter, shall be furnished in tabular form which
shall, among others, include the following information:

Statement of Financial Position

Amount in BDT
Statement of Financial Position

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Efgg‘;rty'”ant and Equipment 930,868,336 793,430,515 687,502,006 727,279,257 | 605,318,794
Total Non-Current Assets 930,868,336 793,430,515 687,502,006 727,279,257 605,318,794
Current Assets
Inventories 47,254,028 40,889,383 83,045,431 115,302,242 114,839,603
Accounts Receivable 109,703,146 144,491,337 232,057,502 198,337,469 190,777,732
Inter-company Loan 0 56,852,490 56,852,490 56,920,164 67,674
Advances, Deposits & Pre-payment 2,361,727 4,074,221 10,488,039 22,563,328 34,286,309
Financial Assets 0 0 0 25,000,000 25,000,000
Cash & Cash equivalents 5,045,134 1,674,664 3,518,212 1,959,859 1,324,713
Total Current Assets 164,364,035 247,982,095 385,961,674 420,083,062 366,296,031
Total Assets 1,095,232,371 1,041,412,610 1,073,463,680 1,147,362,319 971,614,825
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 100,000 100,000 200,100,000 200,110,000 200,110,000
share money deposit 200,000,000
Retained Earnings 19,944,316 52,915,422 21,999,757 45,427,971 88,464,333
Total Shareholder's Equity 20,044,316 53,015,422 422,099,757 245,537,971 288,574,333
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Loan 0 90,509,264 101,093,634 132,891,056 61,381,660
Deferred Tax Liabilities 64,866,700 71,314,895 59,816,428
Shareholder's Loan 200,000,000 200,000,000
Other Non-Current Liabilities 975,249,947 812,852,725 319,469,825 226,958,786 159,795,228
Total Non-Current Liabilities 975,249,947 903,361,989 485,430,159 631,164,737 480,993,316
Current Liabilities
Account Payable 73,991,293 50,804,858 20,967,491 24,845,204 29,103,298
Inter-company Loan 7,362,889 0 10,725,440 104,879,260 34,428,906
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 0 0 46,806,011 73,092,937 62,243,758
Short Term Loan 5,000,000
Advance Received From Customers 2,564,055 4,348,907 35,341,523 11,308,789 6,471,716
Liabilities & Provisions 16,019,871 29,881,434 47,093,299 56,533,421 69,799,498
Total Current Liabilities 99,938,108 85,035,199 165,933,764 270,659,611 202,047,176
Total Liabilities 1,075,188,055 988,397,188 651,363,923 901,824,348 683,040,492
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,095,232,371 1,041,412,610 1,073,463,680 1,147,362,319 971,614,825
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Statement of Profit & Loss

Amount in BDT
Statement of Profit & Loss
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Revenue 137,925,157 266,806,814 312,083,666 293,271,972 277,621,054
Cost of Sales -94,578,782 | -182,789,803 | -222,067,945 | -215,701,000 | -191,897,647
Gross Profit/(Loss) 43,346,375 84,017,011 90,015,721 77,570,972 85,723,407
Operating Expenses

Administrative Expenses -9,205,386 -28,012,745 -19,650,605 -23,793,829 -18,515,087
Selling & Distribution expenses -194,659 -1,573,742 -907,193 -1,108,010 -1,479,723
-9,400,045 | -29,586,487 | -20,557,798 | -24,901,839 | -19,994,810
Operating Profit/(Loss) 33,946,330 54,430,524 69,457,923 52,669,133 65,728,597
Non Operating Income/(Loss) -3,262,767 1,687,759 0 254,375 1,875,000
Financial Expenses 0 -7,272,200 -20,956,444 -17,693,111 -20,178,190
-3,262,767 -5,584,441 -20,956,444 -17,438,736 -18,303,190

Net Profit/(Loss) Before
Contributi/(En to \)NPPF 30,683,563 48,846,083 48,501,479 35,230,397 47,425,407
Contribution to WPPF 0 0 -1,761,520 -2,371,271
Profit Before Tax 30,683,563 48,846,083 48,501,479 33,468,877 45,054,136
Income Tax Expenses -10,739,247 -15,874,977 -14,550,444 -3,592,468 -13,516,241
Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses) 0 0 -2,246,558 -6,448,195 11,498,467
-10,739,247 -15,874,977 -16,797,002 -10,040,663 -2,017,774
Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax 19,944,316 32,971,106 31,704,477 23,428,214 43,036,362
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Statement of Cashflows

Amount in BDT
Statement of Cash Flows

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Cash flow from operating
activities [A]
gﬁ:&fcmvedﬁnn“?venuea“d 34,119,403 231,401,095 | 323,598380 | 303,213,646 | 282,218,718
Cash paid to employees and others -30,169,112 -124,264,117 -180,593,392 -225,779,477 -154,917,813
Cash available from operations 3,950,291 107,136,978 143,004,988 77,434,169 127,300,905
Finance cost paid 0 -7,272,200 -20,956,444 -15,539,553 -21,886,658
Income tax paid 0 -297,368 -5,264,432 -8,322,555 -7,591,627
Net Cash flow from operating 3,950,291 99,567,410 | 116,784,112 53,572,062 | 97,822,620
activities
Cash flow from investing
activities [B]
Acquisition of non current asset -15,933,780 -12,786,923 -50,796,966 -177,310,909 -2,501,327
Proceed from sale of non-current 9,566,668 45,952,380 0|  -25000,000 0
asset/Financial Assets
Net cash provided by/(used in) -6,367,112 33,165,457 | -50,796,966 | -202,310,909 -2,501,327
investing activities
Cash flow from financing
activities [C]
Receipt/(refund) of long term loan 7,361,955 -136,103,337 -264,143,598 147,170,494 -95,956,439
Issued share capital 0 0 200,000,000 10,000 0
Net cash provided by/(used in) 7,361,955 | -136,103,337 | -64,143,598 | 147,180,494 | -95,956,439
financing activities
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 4,945,134 |  -3370,470 | 13843548 |  -1,558,353 -635,146
[D=A+B+(]
Opening cash & cash equivalents [E] 100,000 5,045,134 1,674,664 3,518,212 1,959,859
Closing cash & cash equivalents 5,045,134 1,674,664 3,518,212 1,959,859 1,324,713

[F=D+E]
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(a) Internal and External Source of Cash

Amount in BDT
Internal Source of Cash
Particulars 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Share Capital 100,000 100,000 200,100,000 200,110,000 200,110,000
Retained Earnings 19,944,316 52,915,422 21,999,757 45,427,971 88,464,333
Sub-Total 20,044,316 53,015,422 | 222,099,757 | 245,537,971 | 288,574,333

Amount in BDT

External Source of Cash
Particulars 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Long Term Loan - 90,509,264 101,093,634 132,891,056 61,381,660
Long Term Loan (Current - - 46,806,011 73,092,937 62,243,758
Portion)
Short Term Loan - - 5,000,000 - -
Share Money Deposit - - 200,000,000 - -
Sub-Total - 90,509,264 | 352,899,645 | 205,983,993 | 123,625,418
Grand Total 20,044,316 | 143,524,686 | 574,999,402 | 451,521,964 | 412,199,751
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(b) Any material commitments for capital expenditure and expected sources of funds for such
expenditure:

The Company has made no commitment to purchasing any assets.

(c) Causes for any material changes from period to period in revenues, cost of goods sold, other
operating expenses and net income:

The Company’s revenue and other income as well as operating expenses and net income have
continued to change due to increasing business volume and increase in capacity utilization.

Amount in BDT
Particulars of Profit & Loss
Particulars 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Sales Revenue 137,925,157 | 266,806,814 | 312,083,666 | 293,271,972 | 277,621,054
Cost of Sales -94,578,782 | -182,789,803 | 222,067,945 | -215,701,000 | -191,897,647
Operating Expenses -9,400,045 -29,586,487 -20,557,798 -24,901,839 -19,994,810
NetProfit/ (Loss) after | 14044316 | 32,971,106 | 31,704,477 | 23,428,214 | 43,036,362
Income Tax

Causes for material changes from period to period:

Sales Revenue

2019: The company started its operations in February 2019. Since the company only operated
for four months, all the financial numbers including Revenue only reflect operation for the
mentioned period.

30 June 2020: The company completed its first full year of operation and performed relatively
well (71% growth in Sales Revenue) considering pandemic induced shutdown in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and consequent economic slowdown in the country.

30 June 2021: The company recorded 11.99% YoY topline growth. Sales growth moderated
due to pandemic induced lockdown and subsequent halt in government mega projects.

30 June 2022: BTRSL experienced lower revenues compared to the previous year mainly due
to factors relating to slowdown of economic activity due to global economic uncertainty and
sharp depreciation of BDT against the dollar.

30 June 2023: Revenue collection declined marginally YoY due to global political and
economic turmoil, sharp depreciation of BDT and rising interest rate.

Cost of Sales

The cost of sales is directly aligned with the revenues. Strong brand value, strategic pricing,
and a persistent customer base have helped BTRSL to maintain more than 25% Gross Margin
over the years.
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e Operating Expenses

The company has incurred business administrative and selling distribution expenses during
the last five years, which is regular and relevant with sales and operation.

o Net Profit/(Loss) after tax

The company generated increasing net profits from its inception in 2019 till 2020. It
experienced a slight drop in 2021 but witnessed a significant drop in net profits in 2022
because of the following reasons:

1. The company experienced higher financial expenses in both 2021 and 2022 due
to higher interest expenses.

2. Slowdown of global economic activity and consequently lower activity of
governmental mega projects has slowed top line growth and subsequently
decreased net profit growth.

(d) Any seasonal aspects of the issuer’s business:

The issuer’s business experiences a seasonal impact. During the summer, utilization of
rental fleet increases resulting in a growth in revenue while during the rainy season,
utilization of machines decreases resulting in a momentary decline in revenue.

(e) Any known trends, events or uncertainties that may have material effect on the issuer’s
future business:

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that may have a material effect on the
issuer’s future business.

(f) Any change in the assets of the company used to pay off any liabilities:

None of the assets of the company was used to pay off any liabilities of the company.

(g) Any loan taken from or given to any related party or connected person of the issuer with

details of the same:
Amount in BDT

Name of the company T:I:I:lsl::t?(fn Closing Balance

Bangla Trac Limited Loan Taken (234,428,906)
Bangla Trac Manufacturing Limited Loan Provided 67,674

Total (234,361,232)

(h) Any future contractual liabilities the issuer may enter within next one year, and the
impact, if any, on the financial fundamentals of the issuer:
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The company does not have any contractual liabilities which will be exercised within the

next year.

(i) The estimated amount, where applicable, of future capital expenditure:

A detail of future capital expenditure for the upcoming years is given in the “use of
proceeds” section of this prospectus.

(j) Any VAT, income tax, customs duty or other tax liability, which is yet to be paid, including
any contingent liabilities stating why the same was not paid prior to the issuance of the
prospectus:

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

Tax liabilities as per tax return

Amount in BDT
Gl Net profit as
Income Assessment | before Tax p Gross Tax AIT/TDS Unabsorbed Net Tax
per tax gty . T Remarks
Year Year as per . Liabilities adjusted Tax Loss Liabilities
. computation
audited FS
2018-19 2019-20 33,946,330 (116,594,128) 807,974 20,000 (40,807,945) | (40,019,971)
Submitted U.S
83 (Normal)
2019-20 2020-21 48,846,083 7,625,011 2,478,129 1,180,161 (40,019,971) (38,722,003) | and
assessment is
under process.
2020-21 2021-22 48,501,479 28,769,591 8,630,877 5,893,343 (38,722,003) | (35,984,469)
2021-22 2022-23 33,468,877 19,692,764 5,907,829 7,071,526 (35,984,469) | (37,148,166) zlzﬂérgltted u/s

There is no VAT liability pending/outstanding of the issuer.

(k) Details of any operating lease the company has entered into during the five years
preceding the issuance of the prospectus, clearly indicating terms of the lease and how
the company proposes to liquidate such lease:

Not applicable.

(1) Any financial commitment, including lease commitment, the company had entered into

during the past five years, giving details as to how the liquidation was or is to be in effect;

No such commitment

(m) Details of all personnel related schemes for which the company has to make provision
for in future years:
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Name

Details

Provident Fund

All confirmed employees of Bangla Trac Rental
Services PLC. will be eligible for Provident Fund
After successfully completion of 2 (two) years
continuous service, an employee will be eligible
for Provident Fund both individuals and company
contributions with accumulated interests.
Provident Fund will be payable at the time of
separation or retirement of the employees.
Anyone under contractual service will not be
eligible for Provident Fund. If any contractual
employee becomes permanent, he/she will be
eligible for PF from the date of his/her joining as
permanent employee. Fund is accumulated with
contribution by both employees and employer at
the equal rate

Gratuity Fund

All permanent employees of Bangla Trac Rental
Services PLC. will be eligible for Gratuity. After
successfully completion of 6 (six) months, an
employee will be eligible for Gratuity based on
the basic up to 10 years of service for completion
of each calendar year. On completion of 10 years
of service, gratuity will be 1.5 times of basic as per
law of the land.

Workers’ profit participation and
welfare fund

The Company provides 5% of its net profit before
tax after charging such expense as Workers'
Profit Participation and Welfare Fund in
accordance with "The Bangladesh Labor Act-
2006 (Amendment- 2013).
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(n) Breakdown of all expenses related to the public issue:

Sl. | Type of Fees Description of the Fees Amount BDT
Issue Management Fees 345,000.00
A | Issue Manager's Fees Maximum of BDT 500,000 300,000.00
Vat against [ssue Manager's Fees | 15% of Issue Management Fees 45,000.00
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Fees 135,000.00
B | Application Fees At Actual 50,000.00
BSEC Consent Fees 0.10% of QIO Amount 85,000.00
Fees Related to Listing with the Stock Exchange(s) 522,132.00
Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) 261,066.00
Prospectus Scrutiny Fee for DSE | At Actual 25,000.00
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Initial Listing Fee for DSE 0.10% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 192,555.00
capital @ 0.05%
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Annual Listing Fee for DSE 0.025% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 43,511.00
C capital @ 0.01%
Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) 261,066.00
Prospectus Scrutiny Fee for CSE At Actual 25,000.00
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Initial Listing Fee for CSE 0.10% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 192,555.00
capital @ 0.05%
Up to BDT 10 crore of paid-up capital @
Annual Listing Fee for CSE 0.025% and above BDT 10 crore of paid-up 43,511.00
capital @ 0.01%
Underwriting Commission 122,187.50
D Underwriting Commission 0.5% on the underwritten amount 106,250.00
Xixri?;rslis(;crll.]nderwrltmg 15% on the underwriting commission 15,937.50
CDBL Fees and Expenses 651,266.50
Security Deposit At Actual 500,000.00
Documentation Fee At Actual 2,500.00
E Annual Fee At Actual 100,000.00
&OOIL‘;E’C?‘Z’“MF;‘;}(SDT S00Per 1 A Actual 6,000.00
QIO Fee F@:;i(:jls;bcg;zlue size+.015% of Pre-QIO 42,766.50
Post QIO Expenses 600,000.00
F | PostIssue Management Fee Estimated: To be paid at Actual 400,000.00
Subscription Related Expenses Estimated: To be paid at Actual 200,000.00
G Prospectus Publication & Others 600,000.00
Publication of Prospectus Estimated: To be paid at Actual 200,000.00
H | Miscellaneous Expenses Estimated: To be paid at Actual 400,000.00
Total A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H 3,375,586.00
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(o) If the issuer has revalued any of its assets, the name, qualification and experiences of the
valuer and the reason for the revaluation, showing the value of the assets prior to the
revaluation separately for each asset revalued in a manner which shall facilitate
comparison between the historical value and the amount after revaluation and giving a
summary of the valuation report along with basis of pricing and certificates required

under the revaluation guideline of the Commission:

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. has not revalued its assets since the commencement of its

operation.

(p) Where the issuer is a holding or subsidiary company, full disclosure about the
transactions, including its nature and amount, between the issuer and its subsidiary or
holding company, including transactions which had taken place within the last five years
of the issuance of the prospectus or since the date of incorporation of the issuer, whichever
is later, clearly indicating whether the issuer is a debtor or a creditor:

Details of Transaction with the holding company, Bangla Trac Limited (BTL)

Nature of Transaction 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Opening Balance: Loan ; 7,362,889 | -167,575,936 | 10,725,440 | 304,879,260
from/(to) BTL

Loan Taken 69,989,090 41,454,552 | 312,434,693 | 319,553,820 | 56,951,146
Loan Paid 62,626,201 | 216,393,377 | 134,133,317 | 25,400,000 | 127,401,500
Closing balance of Loan 7,362,889 | -167,575,936 | 10,725,440 | 304,879,260 | 234,428,906
from/(to)

Sv?ti“gffalance of Payables - | 1,022,445,205 | 991,171,824 | 275,593,306 | 134,560,315
Payables against Purchase 1,043,207,205 48,373,484 | 104,176,579 | 167,462,107 | 36,396,873
Payments against Payables 20,762,000 79,646,865 | 819,755,097 | 308,495,098 | 110,187,534
fv';;'g%rfa‘ame of Payables | 4 5 445,205 | 991,171,824 | 275,593,306 | 134,560,315 | 60,769,654
Net Position with BTL: 1,029,808,094 | 823,595,888 | 286,318,746 | 439,439,575 | 295,198,560

Payable / (Receivable)
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(q) Where the issuer is a banking company, insurance company, non-banking financial
institution or any other company which is regulated and licensed by another primary
regulator, a declaration by the board of directors shall be included in the prospectus
stating that all requirements of the relevant laws and regulatory requirements of its
primary regulator have been adhered to by the issuer:

Not applicable for BTRSL.
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(r) Financial Information of Group Companies: following information for the last three years based on the audited financial
statements, in respect of all the group companies of the issuer, wherever applicable, along with significant notes of auditors:

Amount in BDT millions

Name of the Group Companies

Particulars icati

Bangla Trac Limited B-Trac Technologies Limited Bangla Trac E'(I)‘gmumcatlons Bangla Trac Holdings Limited
(1) Date Of. October 2, 2004 January 6, 2014 November 18, 2007 November 30, 2021
Incorporation

(2) Nature of

Trading, Indenting, Service
Provider and authorized Dealer of

Distributor of Dell, HP & Acer
commercial products in Bangladesh

The principal activity of the
Company is to provide

To make investment in the
shares, debentures, bonds or any

Business Caterpillar INC USA in and authorized reseller partner of International Gateway (IGW) other securities of any industries,

Bangladesh. Cisco, Oracle & Microsoft products. services. trade, commerce and/or services.
30-Jun- 30-Jun- 30-Jun- 30-Jun- 30-Jun- 30-Jun-
22 21 30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-22 | 30-Jun-21 20 22 21 20

E::Z)pftgll"ty 100.20 100.00 100.00 201.00 201.00 201.00 89.20 89.20 89.20 50.00 - -

(4) Reserves 4,242.64 | 3,996.54 | 3,702.94 372.12 255.21 78.60 | 1,32841 | 1,295.60 | 1,282.25 -0.18 - -

(5) Sales 5,011.28 | 4,996.07 4,314.59 2,295.29 2,950.93 1,471.00 887.23 789.12 | 1,092.83 0.00 - -

(6) Profit 44246 | 47036 | 33546 | 11690 176.61 64.77 32.98 12.82 16.68 -0.18 . -

after Tax

(7) Earnings

Per Share 441.57 470.36 335.46 58.16 87.86 32.22 36.97 14.38 18.70 -0.04 - -

(EPS) and

Diluted EPS - - - - - - - - - - - -

(8) NetAsset | 53418 | 409654 | 380294 | 28513 226.97 139.10 | 1,589.25 | 1,552.47 | 1,537.50 9.96 - -

Value (NAV)
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(9) The
related
business
transactions
within the
group and
their
significance
on the
financial
performance
of the issuer

Bangla Trac Limited is a supplier
of Caterpillar brand products to
Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

There is no business transactions
with this concern and the issuer and
has no significance on the financial
performance of the issuer.

There are few transactions with
this concern and the issuer but
has no significance on the
financial performance of the
issuer.

There is no business transactions
with this concern and the issuer
and has no significance on the
financial performance of the
issuer.

(10) Sales or
purchase
between
group
companies or
subsidiaries
or associate
companies
when such
sales or
purchases
exceed in
value in the
aggregate ten
percent of the
total sales or
purchases of
the issuer
and also
material
items of
income or
expenditure
arising out of
such
transactions

There is no sales or purchase
to/from this concern by the issuer.

There is no sales or purchase
to/from this concern by the
issuer.

There is no sales or purchase
to/from this concern by the
issuer.
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(s) Where the issuer is a banking company, insurance company, non-banking financial
institution or any other company which is regulated and licensed by another primary
regulator, a declaration by the board of directors shall be included in the prospectus
stating that all requirements of the relevant laws and regulatory requirements of its
primary regulator have been adhered to by the issuer:

Not Applicable.

(t) A report from the auditors regarding any allotment of shares to any person for any
consideration otherwise than cash along with relationship of that person with the issuer
and rationale of issue price of the shares:

Not Applicable

(u) Any material information, which is likely to have an impact on the offering or change the
terms and conditions under which the offer has been made to the qualified investor offer:

There is no material information which is likely to have an impact on the offering or change
the terms and conditions under which the offer has been made to the qualified investor offer.

(v) Defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with financial institutions or banks, conversion of
loans into equity along with reasons thereof, lock out, strikes and reasons for the same etc:

There is no history of defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with financial institutions or
banks, conversion of loan into equity, lockout, strikes.
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SECTION-VI

Directors and Officers
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(a) Name, age, qualification, experience and position of each of the directors of the company
and any person nominated to be a director, showing the period for which, the nomination
has been made and the name of the organization which has nominated him;

Name Father’s Age Residential Educational Experience Position
Name Address Qualification
_ Late House No. .
Mr. Tarique Mohammad 46 CEN(F)- 13, Road | MSc. in
Ekramul . No. 104, Gulshan | Accounting & 22 years Chairman
Aminul years .
Haque Haque Model Town, Finance
Dhaka- 1212,
House - Azimpur
Mr. Md. Zainal | Md. Hassan 58 | Party House; P.O: . Managing
Abedin Ali years | New market- BSc. Engineer 35 years Director
1205, Dhaka,
House No.
Ms. Nazma Late Md. 71 | CEN(F)-13,Road | poot .
Haque Azizul Haque | years No. 104, Gulshan Economics 18 years Director
Model Town,
Dhaka- 1212
gﬂ;ﬁgal House N0.57/A,
(Nominee of Late ]?elawar 48 Ea§t Rajabazar, MBA 20 years Director
Husain years | Tejgaon, Dhaka-
Bangla Trac 1215
Limited)
House- 46, Road-
Mr. Md. Akhter | Mofiz Uddin 65 07, Block- F, BA 30 years Independent
Shahid Ahammad years | Banani, Dhaka- Director
1213

(b) In the case of a director, the date on which he first became a director and the date on which
his current term of office shall expire;

Date of Becoming Date of
Name Position Director Expiration of
For The First Time Current Term
Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque Chairman 27.03.2012 N/A
Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin Managing Director 27.10.2022 26.10.2027
Ms. Nazma Haque Director 28.10.2021 N/A
Mr. Igbal Husain
(Nominee of Bangla Trac Director 27.10.2022 N/A
Limited)
Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid Independent 27.10.2022 26.10.2025
Director
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(c) If any director is also a director of another company or owner or partner of any other
concern, the names of such organizations;

Directorship with Other Companies
Designation
13(1)'_ Name T‘:;?;‘;il; 1 Name of Companies Position
Services PLC.
Bangla Trac LTD. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Communication Ltd. | Managing Director
Bangla Trac Engineering Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Miaki Vas Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Miaki Green Power . .
Ld. Managing Director
Tiffin Box Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Power Ltd. Director
Bangla Trac oil & gas Ltd. Managing Director
B-Trac FMCG Ltd. Managing Director
B-Trac Solutions Ltd. Managing Director
Asian Gate Ltd. Director
Acorn Ltd. Director
Bangla Cat Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. | Chairman
01 Mr. Tarique Ekramul Chai B-Trac Technologies Ltd. Managing Director
) airman : — . ;
Haque Banglatrac Holdings Limited Managing Director
Acorn Infrastructure Services . .
Lid. Managing Director
Acorn Infrastructure Services Managing Director
unit-2 Ltd.
Acorn Infrastructure Services Managing Director
unit-3 Ltd.
Bangla Trac Power unit-1 Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Power unit-2 Ltd. Managing Director
Prime Islami Life Insurance .
o Director
Limited
PFI Securities Limited Director
Prime Islami Securities Limited Director
E?r;ligtlderac Manufacturing Managing Director
Bangla Trac Machinery Limited Managing Director
02. Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin M'anaglng Not Applicable N/A
Director
Bangla Trac Ltd. Chairman
Banglatrac Holdings Limited Chairman
. Asian Gate Ltd. Managing Director
03. Ms. Nazma Haque Director Acorn Lid. Managing Director
B-Trac Technologies Ltd. Director
B-Trac Solutions Ltd. Director
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Bangla Trac Engineering Ltd. Director

Limited

CH4 Energy Limited Director

Prime Bank Limited Director

Prime Insurance Limited Director

Prime Finance Assets Mgt. co. .
Director

Ltd.

Bangla Trac Manufacturing Chairman

Bangla Trac Machinery Limited Chairman

Mr. Igbal Husain

04. (Nominee of Bangla Director Not Applicable N/A
Trac Limited)
Evince Textiles Limited Director
05. | Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid In.dependent Argon De_nirr.15 Lirlnit.ed D?rector
Director Argon Spinning Limited Director
Evitex Fashions Limited Director

(d) Any family relationship among directors and top five officers;

;I(') Name Relationship with Relationship
Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin No Relationship
01 Mr. Tarique Ekramul Ms. Nazma Haque Son of Ms. Nazma Haque
" | Haque Mr. Igbal Husain No Relationship
Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid No Relationship
Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque | No Relationship
Ms. N H No Relationshi
02. | Mr.Md. Zainal Abedin S, TazIma Taque 0 R aflonsup
Mr. Igbal Husain No Relationship
Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid No Relationship
Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin No Relationship
Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque | Mother of Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque
03. | Ms. Nazma Haque
Mr. Igbal Husain No Relationship
Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid No Relationship
. Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque | No Relationship
Mr. Iq_bal Husain Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin No Relationship
04. | (Nominee of Bangla lationshi
Trac Limited) Ms. Nazma Haque No Relationship
Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid No Relationship
Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque | No Relationship
Mr. Md. Zainal Abedi Relationshi
05. | Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid r. Md. Zainal Abedin No Relationship
Ms. Nazma Haque No Relationship
Mr. Igbal Husain No Relationship
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(e) Short biodata of each director:

Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque
Chairman

Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque, the Chairman of the company, brings a vast entrepreneurial and
leadership experience to Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.. He has over 22 years of experience
in Banking, Telecommunications, Power Solutions, and International Business.

Mr. Tarique Started his carrier with Goldman Sachs International, UK as a Financial Analyst in
2001. He also served as a director of Prime Bank Limited. He currently has directorship in
Bangla Trac Limited (Sole Dealer of Caterpillar Inc. in Bangladesh), Bangla Trac
Communications Limited (IGW Operator), and Acorn Infrastructure Services Limited (Power
Plant), B-Trac Technologies LTD. (Dell & HP dealership), Tiffin Box LTD. (Franchisee of Burger
King)., and several other companies. Mr. Tarique worked in Finance, Business Operations,
Marketing, and Portfolio Management during his diverse business career.

He completed MSc. in Accounting & Finance from the London School of Economics (LSE), UK
in 2003.

Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin
Managing Director

Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin, Managing Director of Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,, is a prominent
businessperson in Bangladesh. He has over 35 years of experience in Engineering,
Telecommunication, Education, Power, and Service Industry. Previously, he worked for
Rajshahi University of Engineering & Technology (RUET), Bangladesh Power Development
Board (BPDB), Bangladesh Telecommunications Company Limited (BTCL), Teletalk
Bangladesh Limited, and Bangla Trac Communications Ltd.

Before starting his professional career, he graduated in Electrical & Electronic Engineering
from Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology (BUET) in 1987.

Ms. Nazma Haque
Director

Ms. Nazma Haque, Director of Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC., is a prominent
businessperson in Bangladesh. She graduated in Economics from the University of Dhaka. She
has a long experience in Financial Management, Business Administration, and Portfolio
Management during her diverse business career. She is experienced in the sector of
Engineering, Telecommunication, Power, and Service Industry. Currently, she is also a
Director and Vice Chairman of Prime Bank Limited. She is also a former director of Prime
Insurance Company Limited.

In addition to her active involvement in business, Ms. Nazma Haque is an enthusiastic social
worker, and she is actively engaged in various Social and Welfare programs especially in
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Rajshahi. She is one of the founders of Bangla Trac Cricket academy located in Rajshahi which
trains financially challenged youth in Rajshabhi for free of cost.

Mr. Igbal Husain
Director (Representing Bangla Trac Limited)

Mr. Igbal Husain joined Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. as a nominee director representing
Bangla Trac Limited. Mr. Husain is a business leader with global experience across diverse
industries. He has demonstrated repeated success in establishing and transforming medium
to large-scale business operations. He has over 20 years of experience in leading strategic
planning, supply chain management, stakeholder relationship management, business
transformation, and business operations management. His experience spreads across Retail
and CPG, Pharmaceutical, Oil & Gas, Textiles, Utilities, Construction, and Transportation
industries.

Mr. Igbal Husain is currently serving as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Bangla Trac
Limited. Prior to joining Bangla Trac Limited, Mr. Husain served as Operations Consultant in
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), Toronto, Canada. He also worked as Business Development
Manager in IKEA Group (Canada, India, Bangladesh), Head of Supply Chain & Construction
Services in RANCON Engineering, Plant Logistics Manager in Sanofi and Supply Chain
Manager in Novartis / Sandoz.

Apart from several local & international professional training programs, Mr. Husain has
obtained MBA from IBA, University of Dhaka and B.Sc in Mechanical Engineering from
Bangladesh University of Engineering & Technology (BUET).

Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid
Independent Director

Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid is a seasoned business professional with experience in the area of
Corporate Governance, International Business, and Textile & Garments sector. He has over 30
years of experience in various functions and industries. He currently holds directorship in
Argon Denims Limited (listed company), Evince Textiles Limited, Argon Spinning Limited,
and Evitex Fashions Limited. He joined Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. in October 2022 as
an Independent Director. Mr. Md. Akther Shahid completed his bachelor’s degree in 1983.

(f) Neither the company nor any of its directors of the issuer is loan defaulter in terms of the
CIB report of the Bangladesh Bank:

Neither the company nor any of its directors or shareholders who hold 5% or more shares in
the paid-up capital of the issuer is loan defaulter in terms of CIB report of Bangladesh Bank.

However, one of its directors, Mr. Tarique Ekramul Haque, sought and availed a stay order
against the CIB reporting of Bangladesh Bank. This stay order is valid till 03-12-2023.
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(g) Name with position, educational qualification, date of joining in the company, last five
years’ experience of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary,
Advisers, Consultants, Additional and Deputy Managing Directors and All Departmental Heads

SL Name Designation Qualification Experience Da.lt(? of
Joining
01 Mr. Tarique Ekramul Chairman MSC. in Accounting & 22 years 27.03.2012
Haque Finance
02 | Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin Managing BSc. Engineer 35years | 27.10.2022
Director
03 | Ms. Nazma Haque Director BSS in Economics 18 years 28.10.2021
Mr. Igbal Husain
04 | (Nominee of Bangla Trac Director MBA 20 years 27.10.2022
Limited)
05 | Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid [ndependent BA 30 years 27.10.2022
Director
Chief Financial Master of Professional
06 | Mr. Abdullah Al Kafy : Accounting & pursuing 15 years 02.01.2019
Officer .
CA Final Level
Company ) .
Master’s in accounting
o7 | Mr-Mohammad Imran Secretary & & Pursuing CA l4years | 01.04.2019
Hossain Compliance .
' Professional Level
Officer
Master of Professional
08 | Qazi Shariful Haider Head of Accounts | Accounting & pursuing 6 years 07.11.2019
CA Professional Level
Manager Finance Master of Business
09 | Md. Saiful Islam & Accf(g)ur’lts Administration & 11 years 10.10.2019
CIMA Adv. Dip. MA
Sadeque Ehtheshum Manager & Head Master of Business
10 Chowdhury of Operations Administration 12 years 04.02.2019
Assistant Manager .
11 | Tahmid Zaman Khan & Head of Erslc'irllr;gﬁfhamcal 7 years 09.01.2021
Machine Rental 5 5
. Senior Engineer & | BSc. In Electrical and
12} Noor-A-Tasnim Head of EP Rental | Electronic Engineering Syears 23.05.2019
Senior Engineer & .
13 | Md. Jekrullah Head of Asset BSC'. In Mechamcal 6 years 28.07.2019
Engineering
Management
Assistant Manager Diploma in Electrical
14 | Mong Kyaw - U & Rental Yard In- blo 20 years 17.10.2019
Charge Solutions
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SECTION-VII

Involvement of Directors and Officers in Certain Legal
Proceedings:
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(a) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any company of which any officer or
director of the issuer company filing the prospectus was a director, officer or partner
at the time of the bankruptcy:

No such bankruptcy petition filed by or against the issuer.

(b) Any conviction of director, officer in a criminal proceeding or any criminal proceeding
pending against him:

No such conviction of director, officer in a criminal proceeding or any criminal proceeding
pending against him.

(c) Any order, judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction against any
director, officer permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise limiting the involvement of any director or officer in any type of business,
securities or banking activities:

No such order, judgement, or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction against any
director.

(d) Any order of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, or other regulatory
authority or foreign financial regulatory authority, suspending or otherwise limiting
the involvement of any director or officer director in any type of business, securities or
banking activities:

No such order.
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SECTION-VIII

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
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The prospectus shall contain a description of any transaction during the last two years, or any
proposed transactions, between the issuer and any of the following persons, giving the name
of the persons involved in the transaction, their relationship with the issuer, the nature of their
interest in the transaction and the amount of such interest, namely-

(a) Any director or executive officer of the issuer;
(b) Any director or officer;
(c) Any person owning 5% or more of the outstanding shares of the issuer;

(d) Any member of the immediate family (including spouse, parents, brothers, sisters,
children, and in-laws) of any of the above persons;

The company does not have any transaction with persons as mentioned in above.

(e) Any transaction or arrangement entered into by the issuer or its subsidiary for a person
who is currently a director or in any way connected with a director of either the issuer
company or any of its subsidiaries/holding company or associate concerns, or who was a
director or connected in any way with a director at any time during the last three years
prior to the issuance of the prospectus;

Details of Transaction with the holding company, Bangla Trac Limited (BTL)

Amount in BDT
Nature of Transaction 30-Jun-2023 30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2021
Purchase 36,396,873.00 167,462,107.00 104,176,597.00
Loan Taken 56,951,146.00 319,530,921.00 312,434,693.00
Loan Paid 127,401,500.00 25,400,000.00 134,133,317.00
Share Mone
Received/('l};ansferred) - | (200,000,000.00) 200,000,000.00

(f) Any loans either taken or given from or to any director or any person connected with
the director, clearly specifying details of such loan in the prospectus, and if any loan
has been taken from any such person who did not have any stake in the issuer, its
holding company or its associate concerns prior to such loan, rate of interest
applicable, date of loan taken, date of maturity of loan:

Bangla Trac Limited has given a no-interest bearing loan to the issuer (BTRSL) which has an
outstanding balance of BDT 34,428,906 as on 30 June, 2023.

46



(g) Any director holding any position, apart from being a director in the issuer company,

in any company, society, trust, organization, or proprietorship or partnership firm;

Directorship with Other Companies

Designation
13(1)'_ Name TlrI;f;I;il; | Name of Companies Position
Services PLC.
Bangla Trac Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Communication Ltd. | Managing Director
Bangla Trac Engineering Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Miaki Vas Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Miaki Green Power . .
Lid. Managing Director
Tiffin Box Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Power Ltd. Director
Bangla Trac oil & gas Ltd. Managing Director
B-Trac FMCG Ltd. Managing Director
B-Trac Solutions Ltd. Managing Director
Asian Gate Ltd. Director
Acorn Ltd. Director
Bangla Cat Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. | Chairman
01 Mr. Tarique Ekramul Chai B-Trac Technologies Ltd. Managing Director
. airman : — : _
Haque Banglatrac Holdings Limited Managing Director
Acorn Infrastructure Services . .
Ltd. Managing Director
Acorn Infrastructure Services Managing Director
unit-2 Ltd.
Acorn Infrastructure Services Managing Director
unit-3 Ltd.
Bangla Trac Power unit-1 Ltd. Managing Director
Bangla Trac Power unit-2 Ltd. Managing Director
Prime Islami Life Insurance .
o Director
Limited
PFI Securities Limited Director
Prime Islami Securities Limited Director
Bangla Trac Manufacturing Managing Director
Limited
Bangla Trac Machinery Limited Managing Director
02. Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin M.anaglng Not Applicable N/A
Director
Bangla Trac Ltd. Chairman
03. Ms. Nazma Haque Director Banglatrac Holdings Limited Chairman

Asian Gate Ltd.

Managing Director

Acorn Ltd.

Managing Director
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B-Trac Technologies Ltd. Director
B-Trac Solutions Ltd. Director
Bangla Trac Engineering Ltd. Director
CH4 Energy Limited Director
Prime Bank Limited Director
Prime Insurance Limited Director
Prime Finance Assets Mgt. co. .
Director
Ltd.
B.angla Trac Manufacturing Chairman
Limited
Bangla Trac Machinery Limited Chairman
Mr. Igbal Husain
04. (Nominee of Bangla Director Not Applicable N/A
Trac Limited)
Evince Textiles Limited Director
05. | Mr. Md. Akhter Shahid In.dependent Argon De.nirr.ls Lirlnit.ed D?rector
Director Argon Spinning Limited Director
Evitex Fashions Limited Director

(h) All interests and facilities enjoyed by a director, whether pecuniary or non-pecuniary.

There is no interest and facilities enjoyed by directors.
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SECTION-IX

Executive Compensation
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(a) The total amount of remuneration or salary or perquisites paid to the top five salaried
officers of the issuer in the last accounting year and the name and designation of each
such officer:

Amount in BDT
SL . . For the period ended
No. Name Designation 30 June 2023
01 | Mr. Abdullah Al Kafy Chief Financial Officer 1,782,000
02 Mr. Mghammad Imran Corppany Secretary & Compliance 674,929
Hossain Officer
Sadeque Ehtheshum .
03 Chowdhury Manager & Head of Operations 1,540,762
04 | Tahmid Zaman Khan | Assistant Manager & Head of 1,139,820
Machine Rental
05 | Mong Kyaw - U Assistant Manager & Rental Yard 1,084,643
In-Charge

(b) Aggregate amount of remuneration paid to all directors and officers as a group during
the last accounting year:

Amount in BDT

SL Desienation Nature of For the period ended
No. g Transaction 30-Jun-2023
Remuneration &

01 | Chairman Board Meeting Fee _

. . Remuneration &
02 | Managing Director Board Meeting Fee -

. Remuneration &
03 | Director Board Meeting Fee -

Officers and staffs Salary and

04 (Admin & Selling) Allowance 11,634,717
Operators, Supervisor,

05 and Other Staffs Salary and Wages 28,375,843

(c) The amount of remuneration paid to any director who was not an officer during the last
accounting year:

No such remuneration paid to any director.
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(d) Any contract with any director or officer providing for the payment of future
compensation:

There is no such contract between the Company and any of the directors or officers regarding
any future compensation to be made to them.

(e) If the issuer intends to substantially increase the remuneration paid to its directors and
officers in the current year, appropriate information regarding thereto:

The Company has no plan for substantially increasing remuneration to its directors and/or
officers except for those that are paid as annual increment to their salaries
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SECTION-X

Options granted to Directors, Officers, and Employees
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. did not grant any options to its directors, officers and/or any
other employees for the purpose of issuing shares.
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SECTION-XI

Transaction with the Directors and Subscribers to the
Memorandum
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(a) The names of the directors and subscribers to the memorandum, the nature and amount
of anything of value received by the issuer during the last five years or to be received by
each of the above persons, directly or indirectly, from the issuer and the nature and
amount of any assets, services or other consideration received or to be received by the
issuer shall be stated in the prospectus;

(i) Remuneration, Bonus and Board Meeting Fee: Not applicable.

(ii) Machinery: Not applicable.

(iii) Share Money Deposit

Nature 30-Jun-2018 30-Jun-2019 30-Jun-2020 30-Jun-2021 30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2023
Name Tr:rflsa ‘Z::]t:l Accru | TOR | pcepy | Totl oy | Total | yeeny | TR pcer
! u ed Amou ed Amou ed Amou ed Amou ed
ction nt nt nt nt nt

Share
Bangla Money 20
Trac Deposit - - - - Crore Nil - Nil
Limited receive

d

Transfe

rto
Bangla loan 20
Trac from - - - - Crore Nil Nil
Limited Share

Money

Deposit
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(b) If any assets were acquired or are to be acquired from the aforesaid persons, the amount
paid for such assets and the method used to determine the price shall be mentioned in the
prospectus, and if the assets were acquired by the said persons within two years prior to
their transfer to the issuer, the cost thereof paid to the subscribers to the memorandum
shall also have to be shown therein:

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. acquired the following assets from Bangla Trac Limited
during periods as mentioned herein:

Amount in BDT
Acquifition Asset Names QTY | Cost of acquisition Method used to. determine the
Period price
30-Jun-19 Diesel Generator 22 370,101,832 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Gas Generator 1 18,740,240 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Excavator 10 383,741,698 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Bulldozer 2 12,644,441 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Crawler Crane 1 29,854,607 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Forklift 2 3,892,104 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Rotary Drilling Rig 1 53,036,000 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Rough Terrain Crane 2 42,858,136 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Soil Compactor 1 4,356,045 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Wheel Dozer 1 8,302,069 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Wheel Loader 6 30,830,295 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Dump Truck 1 12,585,413 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Generator Attachment 5 17,950,204 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-19 Overhauling 3 1,934,232 | Book value plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-20 Generator Attachment 243,500 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-20 Overhauling 24 12,543,423 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-21 Excavator 1 6,300,000 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-21 Generator Attachment 14,400 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-21 Overhauling 46 44,482,566 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-22 Excavator 3 101,582,034 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-22 Generator Attachment 1 117,817 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-22 Overhauling 9 5,810,956 | Cost plus applicable VAT
30-Jun-23 Overhauling 3 2,093,489 | Cost plus applicable VAT
Total 1,164,015,501
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SECTION-XII

Tangible assets per share
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The prospectus shall show the net tangible asset backing per unit of the securities being

offered at the date of the latest statement of financial position contained or referred to in the
prospectus.

Tangible Assets Per Share

Assets (In BDT) As on 30 June, 2023
Total Tangible Assets 971,614,825
No of Shares 20,011,000
Tangible Assets Per Share 48.55
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SECTION- XIII

Ownership of the Company’s Securities
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(a) The prospectus shall disclose, in tabular form, the name and address of any person who
owns, beneficially or of record, 5% or more of the securities of the issuer, indicating the
number of securities owned, whether they are owned beneficially or of record, and the
percentage of the securities represented by such ownership:

Number of LD 0w
Name Position Address BO ID No. Securities
Shares
(%)
House No. CEN(F)- 13,
Tarique Ekramul Chairman | Road No. 104, Gulshan 1) 0154606101746 1,715,229 8.571%
Haque Model Town, Dhaka-
1212,
Manaein House - Azimpur Party
Md. Zainal Abedin . sing House; P.O: New market- | 1204480062952779 571,743 2.857%
Director
1205, Dhaka,
House No. CEN(F)- 13,
Road No. 104, Gulshan
. ) 0,
Nazma Haque Director Model Town, Dhaka- 1201740000049316 1,715,229 8.571%
1212
Banela Trac House # 68, Road # 11
) g Director Block - H, Banani, 1202650075940305 16,001,799 79.965%
Limited
Dhaka-1213
BanelaTrac House # 68, Road # 11
Hol§in s Ltd Shareholder | Block - H, Banani, 1202650075940321 5,000 0.025%
g5 L. Dhaka-1213
Bangla Trac House # 68, Road # 11
Communications Shareholder | Block - H, Banani, 1202650075940348 1,000 0.005%
Limited Dhaka-1213
B-Trac House # 68, Road # 11
Technologies Shareholder | Block - H, Banani, 1202650075940364 1,000 0.005%
Limited Dhaka-1213
Total | 20,011,000 100.00%

60




(b) There shall also be a table in the prospectus showing the number of shares of the issuer’s
securities owned by each director, each of the top ten salaried officers, and all other
officers as a group, indicating the percentage of outstanding shares represented by the
shares owned:

. Number of Pre QIO-of
Name Position Address BO ID No. Shares Securities (%)
House No.
Tarique CEN(F)- 13, Road
Ekramul Chairman No. 104, Gulshan 1201740006101746 1,715,229 8.571%
Haque Model Town,
Dhaka- 1212,
House - Azimpur
Md. Zainal Managing | Party House; P.O: 0
Abedin Director New market- 1204480062952779 571,743 2.857%
1205, Dhaka,
House No.
Nazma CEN(F)- 13, Road
Director No. 104, Gulshan 1201740000049316 1,715,229 8.571%
Haque
Model Town,
Dhaka- 1212
House # 68, Road
Bangla Trac | ;o ovor | # 11 Block-H, 1202650075940305 16,001,799 79.965%

Limited

Banani, Dhaka-
1213

**No such share is held by top ten salaried officers, and all other officers as a group.

(c) Provisions for lock-in as per these Rules:

All issued ordinary shares of the issuer at the time of according to consent to QIO shall be subject to
a lock-in period from the date of issuance of prospectus or commercial operation, whichever comes
later, in the following manner:

(a) ordinary shares held by sponsors, directors or shareholders who hold 10% (ten

percent) or more, for 2 (two) years;

(b) ordinary shares held by alternative investment funds or by foreign investors or by
others for 1 (one) year:
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(d) Statement of securities to be locked in for each shareholder along with BO account
number, lock-in period and number of securities to be locked-in:

SL Number HOE
Name of Shareholder Position BO ID Period
No. of Shares
(Year)
01 | Mr Tarique Ekramul | 0 oo | 1201740006101746 | 1,715,229 2 Years
Haque
02 | Mr. Md. Zainal Abedin | MaP38IN8 | 1564480062952779 571,743 2 Years
Director
03 | Ms. Nazma Haque Director 1201740000049316 1,715,229 2 Years
04 | Bangla Trac Limited Director 1202650075940305 | 16,001,799 2 Years
05 Eta;‘glaTrac Holdings | ¢} reholder | 1202650075940321 5,000 1 Year
Bangla Trac
06 | Communications Shareholder | 1202650075940348 1,000 1 Year
Limited
B-Trac Technologies
07 Limited Shareholder 1202650075940364 1,000 1 Year
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SECTION-XIV

Determination of Offering Price

63




(a) If ordinary shares are being offered, the factors to be considered in determining the
offering price shall be set forth in the prospectus;

The issue is offered at par.

(b) If the issue price of the ordinary share is higher than the par value thereof, justification of
the premium shall be stated with reference to all of the followings:

(i) Net asset value per share at historical or current costs;

(ii) Earning-based-value per share calculated based on weighted average of net profit
after tax for immediately preceding five years or such shorter period during which
the issuer was in commercial operation.

(iii) projected earnings-based- value per share calculated on the basis of weighted
average of projected net profit after tax for the immediate next three accounting
years as per the issuer’s own assessment duly certified by the auditor of the issuer;

The issue is offered at par.
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SECTION- XV

Description of Securities Outstanding or Being Offered
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All types of securities outstanding or being offered with the date or proposed date of such issue and
to whom those are offered, number of securities and issue or offer price along with the following
information:

(a) Dividend, voting and preemption rights:

The Share Capital of the company is divided into Ordinary Shares, carrying equal rights to vote
and receive a dividend in terms of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1994 and the
Articles of Association of the company. All Shareholders shall have the usual voting rights in
person or by proxy in connection with, among others, the election of Directors & Auditors and
other usual agenda of General Meeting - Ordinary or Extra-ordinary. On a show of hand, every
shareholder presents in person and every duly authorized representative of a shareholder
present at a General Meeting shall have one vote and, on a poll, every shareholder present or by
proxy shall have one vote for every share held by him or her.

In case of any additional issue of shares for raising further capital, the existing shareholders shall
be entitled to Right Issue of shares in terms of the guidelines issued by the BSEC from time to
time.

(b) Conversion and liquidation rights:

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act 1994, Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant rules in force, the shares of the Company are freely transferable. The Company
shall not charge any fee for registering the transfer of shares. No transfer shall be made to a firm,
an infant or person of unsound mind.

(c) Dividend policy:

The profit of the Company, subject to any special right relating thereto created or authorized to
be created by the Memorandum and subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, shall
be divisible among the members in proportion to the amount of capital paid-up on the shares
held by them respectively.

The dividend shall be recommended by the Board of Directors time to time for distributing the
accumulated profit.

No dividend shall be payable except out of the profits of the Company or any other undistributed
profits. The dividend shall not carry interest as against the Company.

The Directors may from time to time pay the members such interim dividend as in their judgment
the financial position of the Company may justify.

A transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any dividend declared thereon before the
registration of transfer.

No limitation in payment of the dividend is stipulated in any debt instrument or otherwise.
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(d) Other rights of the securities holders:

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 1994, Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant rules in force, the shares of the Company are transferable. The Company shall not
charge any fee, other than Government duties for registering transfer of shares. No transfer shall
be made to a minor or person of unsound mind.

The Directors shall present the financial statements as required under the law & International
Accounting Standard. Financial statements will be prepared in accordance with the International
Accounting Standards consistently applied throughout the subsequent periods and present with
the objective of providing maximum disclosure as par law and International Accounting Standard
to the shareholders regarding the financial and operational position of the company. The
shareholders shall have the right to receive all periodical statements and reports, audited as well
as unaudited, published by the company from time to time.

The shareholder holding a minimum of 10% shares of paid-up capital of the company shall have
the right to requisition extra ordinary General Meeting of the company as provided for the section
84 of the Companies Act 1994.

67



CHAPTER-XVI

Financial Statements
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(a) The financial statements prepared and audited in adherence to the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020:
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,
Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC. which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 Junc 2023, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including # summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financizl Statements present fairly, in all material respeets, the financial
position of the company as at 30 June 2023, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IPRSs) and other applicable laws and
regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilitics
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordunce with the IESBA Code and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) By Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient und appropriate to provide a basis for our unqualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

i The amount referred to Note No, 15 in the financial statements will be considered to align with the
Financial Reporting Council's (FRC) gazette notification no. 146/FRC/Adm:/Gazette/2020/01 dated
11 February 2020, with the legal opinion from the company drawn in Note No,3,14.

ii. We further refer Note-3.9 of the financial statements where Contributory Provident Fund (CPF),
Gratuity end Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) has no trustee board and yet not approved
by the concemed authority. However, provision has been made as per relevant laws,

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the Annual Report other than the finencial stutements and our suditor’s report thereon. The
Annual Report is expected to be made available to us afier the date of this auditors” report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Hend Offlce:

Home Town Apartrneeas (Flae-C Lovel-15 & Flat-B, Level-13)
87, New Pskaton Road, Dbaka- 1000,

Tel - (-410032887, Mokl : 4880171301305
e-muil : KkotSi@ganadl com, kzke bd@yahoo com

Branch Offiee |

Sultana Tower (Level-12). 2 No, Kalabugan, Mispar Road
Dhanmandi, Disska-1208, Mobile  01726-339592

e-mail: mabmudkzkebd @ gmadd oom, rdoftekbarsh & gmai.com

*
-
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the financial statement as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matters

|

Our response to Key Audit Matters

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The carrying value of the Property, plant and
equipment (PPE) was Taka 605,318,794 us of 30
June 2023,

The valuation of Property, plant and equipment
(PPE) was identified as a kev audit matters due
to the significance of this balance to the
Firancial Statements.

Items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impainment losses, if any. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, import duties and
non-refundsble taxes (after deducting trade
discount and rebates) and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the intended manner,

The cost of replacing or upgrading any part of an
item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in the carrying emount of the item if
it is probable that the future economic benefits
embuodied within the replacement or upgradation
will flow o the Company and its cost can be
measured relisbly. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as incurred.

Our andit included the following procedure,

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls over Property, plant and equipment
(PPE). Our awdit procedures included, among others,
considering the impairment risk of the assets.
Followings are our audit procedures on the carrying
value and impairment risk of PPE:

* Reviewing basis of recognition, measurement and
valuation of assets;

Review of procedures of assets acquisition,
depreciation and disposal;

Checking ownership of the major assets;
Performing due verification on sample basis;
Evaluating the item’s assumptions to identify if
there is any requirement of recognition of
impairment;

Checking fixed asset register of the company,
performing test check of depreciation calculation,
checking fixed asscts schedule and books of
Becounts maintained by the company; and

Finally, assessing the sppropriateness and
presentation of disclosures in line with relevant
necounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to
PPE and related deprecistion other than the issues
mentioned in this report.

Long-term and Short-term loan (“Loans™)

At the reporting date, the position of Long-Term
Loan and Long Term Loan-Current Maturity
remained amounting to Taka 61,381,660 and
Taka 62,243,758 for the Company. In other
words, upproximately 13% of total liabilities for
:bc Company are represented by shor-tenn
oans,

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operational effectiveness of the
Company’s key controls over the loans.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the

followings:

¢ Obtained loan statements and facility offer lotters
1o review terms, debt covenants, interest rates and

Hend Office:
Howoe Town Apartments (Flat-C Level-15 & Flat-B, Level1Y)
7, New Eskaton Rosd, Dhaka-1000,

Ted : 02-41032557, Mohile : +8301713-013953%

c-mml © kzkodSadgpmail.com, kzke bd@yahno com

Branch Offige :

Sultana Tower (Level-12), 2 No. Kalabagan, Mirspes Road
Dbanmond, Dhaka-1205, Mobibe © 01726-339802

c-mall mabmudkriebd @gmail com, mdeftekbanli@gmai com
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Description of Key Audit Matters

Qur response to Key Audit Matters

Evidently, the Company is using loans to operate
the business and also, to acquire non-current
assets. Therefore, it has been considered as key
audit area.

other conditions associated with the loans.

¢  Obtained external confirmation of the bank to
ensure accuracy of the figures reported.

o Checked interest caloulation on test basis.

e Checked whether there is any overdue payments
and penal interests,

¢ Checked the adjustments or repayments of loans
through bank statements as per  repayment
schedule.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to
Short-term  loan  (“Loans™) other than the issues
mentioned in this report,

Revenue Recognition

At year end, the Company reported total revenue
of Taka 316,324,212,

Revenue is recognized when the performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring goods or
services (o a customer, either at a point in time or
over time.

Goods or services are “transferred™ when the
customer obtains control of it. Furthermore,
revenue is measured at net of trade discounts,
markdown adjustment, retums and allowances,

It is & matter of concem that revenue may be
misstated due to recognition of sales transaction
before performance obligation being satisfied.

Our awdit procedures in relation 1o the revenue
recognition comprises the followings:

* Observing and evaluating whether  proper
segregation of duties put in place;

o Preparing workflow of sales process for different
business unit,

* Obtaining month wise breakdown of sales per
basiness unit.

*  Months were selected on mndom basis and GL
obtained to select transactions for substantive
testing,

e Comparing prices and terms on samples of sales
invoices to the price list.

e Checking invoice maised at the year end and
delivery of goeds with acknowledgement of
customer to ensure that cut off principle has been
properly applied,

*  Assessing revenue recognition eccounting policies
by comparison with IFRS 15.

o Testing the effectiveness of the controls over the
calculation of discounts.

o Assessing manual journals made to revenue to
identify unusual or irregular items; and

o Finally, assessing the appropristeness and
presentation  of  disclosures  ngainst relevant
accounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to
Revenue Recognition other than the issues mentioned
in this report.

Valuation of Inventory

The company had_inventory amount to Taka | We challenged the appropriateness of managements

Head Offiee:
-Home Towe Apartments (Flot-C Level-15 & Fla-B, Level 13)
X7, New Eskion Roed, Dhake- 1000,
Tel - 0241032557, Mobile | =8R0O1713-013055
e-mail * kzked8@mgmall com, kzke_bdifiyahoo.com

Branch Office :

Sultass Tower (Level-12), 2 No. Kalsbagaa, Mingar Road
Dhunmeadi, Dbaka- 1208, Meinle : 01726-339892

c-manl: mahmudirioshetigeail com, mdefiekharabdgma: cam
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Description of Key Audit Matters Our response to Key Audit Matters

114,839,603 on 30 June 2023, held
warchouses and across multiple product lines,
Inventories are carried at the cost value.
Therefore, it has been considered as key audit
area.

assumption applied in calculating the value of the
inventory provisions by:

« Evaluating the design and implementation of key
inventory controls operating across the company,
including those at a sample of warchouses.

e Comparing the net realizable value, obtained
through a detailed review of sales subsequent to
the vear-end, to the cost price of a sample of
inventories,

e Challenging the sppropriateness of management’s
Jjudgement regarding valuation of inventories.

Our testing did not identify any issucs with regard to
valuation of inventory other than the issues mentioned
in this report,

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable

The company reported Trade Receivable and
Trade Payeble amount to Taka 190,777,732 and
Taka 29,103,298 respectively on 30 June 2023,

Therefore, it has been considered as key audit
arca.

We challenged the appropriateness of managements

assumption applied in calculating the valuwe of the

Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable provisions

by:

¢ Evaluating the design and implementation of key
Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable
controls of the company,

*  We have sent balance confirmation letter.

e Management complies the alternative procedure to
confirm the balance of accounts receivable and
accounts payable

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to
accounts receivable and accounts payable other than the
issues mentioned in this report.

Measurement of Deferred Tax

The company recognizes deferred taxes relating
to property, plant and equipment, investment in
quoted share, employee benefits, shipping unit
etc. which are very complex in nature,

As such accounting for deferred taxes involves
management judgement in developing estimates
of tx exposures and contingencies in order to
assess the adequacy of tax provision. Hence, we
considered this 1o be a key audit matter,

Our audit procedures in this area included, among
others, the following:

e Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls in respect
of the Company and the process of recognition of
deferred taxes,

e  Assessed the accuracy and completeness of
deferred tax, and

* Evaluating the adequacy of the financial
statement’s disclosures, including disclosures of
assumptions, judgments and sensitivities,

Head Office:
. Home Town Apartments (Flot-C Level-15 & Fim-B, Level-13)
47, Now Lskaton Road, Dhnka- 1000,
Tel : 0241032557, Mobile : +8801 713013055
c-mail : kokod8 G gmail com, kzke_bdiilyaboo.com

Branch Office :

Sultama Tower (Level-12), 2 No. Kalabagan, Mirpus Road
Dhanaondi, Dhaka- 1205, Mobile - 01726-339%92

e.mail: mahmuSckobdingmail com, mdefekharaliGigma com
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We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report if we have concluded that the use of the going concem basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at |east twelve months from the date of the financial statements. We have nothing to
report in this respect,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managemen! is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for averseeing the Company’s financial reporting proocess,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether duoe to fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion, Ressonable assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an sudit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we exercise professional
Jjudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the sudit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 10
fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
cvidence that is sufficient and appropriatz to peovide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internzl control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal cortrol,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abilityto continue as a going concern.
1f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

Head Office:
Hame Town Apartments (Flat-C' Level-15 & Flt-f5, Level-13)
87, Now Eskaton Road, Dhwka 1000

Teh: 0241032557, Wiobite : 8801713012085
canail © krkedR G gmail com, kzke bdimynhoo.com

Branch Office :

Sulsans Tower (Level-12), 2 No. Kalsbagan, Misper Road
Dhmeamendi, Dhake-1205, Mobile - 01726329892

e-wmil: mabmudizkehdmgmall. coes, midehekhaesiiigoo com
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auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
s @ ZOing Concer.

e Eyaluate the overnll presentution, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with u staterment that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the company’s financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
& matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and relevant notifications issues by, we also report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b} In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books;

¢) The Financial Statements of the company togetaer with the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in
mgreement with the books of sccount and returns,

ALm—

Mohammed Alamgir Kabir, FCA
Place : Dhaka E:rr:‘llmcm No: 1483
Date : Kz Zahir Khan & Co.
DVC: 25[10,2023 Chartered Accountants
231025“83A5692972
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Sultana Towes (Level-12}, 2 No, Kalabagan, Mirpur Road
Dhaamondi, Dhaka-1205, Mobile : 01726-339852
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2023
Amount In Taka
Fraonme Note || T S0dmas
Assets
Nou-Curreat Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.00 605,318,794 727,279,287
605,318,794 727,279,257
Current Assets
Inventories S.00 114,839,603 115,302,242
Accounts Receivable 6.00 190,777,732 198,337,469
Inter-Company Loan 7.00 67,674 56,920,164
Advances, Deposits & Pre-payment 8.00 34,286,309 22 563,328
Finnncial Assets 92.00 25,000,000 25,000,000
Casl: & Cash equivalents 10.00 1,324,713 1,959,859
366,296,031 420,083,062
Total Assets 971,61 ﬂg li147.362£l9
Shareholder's Equity & Liabilities
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 11.00 200,110,000 200,110,000
Retained Earnings 12,00 88,464,333 45427971
288,574,333 245,537,971
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Loan 13.00 61,381,660 132,891,056
Defesred Tox Liabilities 14.00 50,816,428 71,314,895
Shareholder’s Loan 15.00 200,000,000 200,000,000
Other Noa-Current liabilities 16.00 159,795,228 226,958,786
480,993,316 631,164,737
Current Linbilities
Account Payable 17.00 29,103,298 24845204
Inter-Company Loun 18.00 34,428,906 104,879,260
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 19.00 62,243,758 71,002937
Advince Received From Customers 2000 6,471,716 11,308,789
Liabilities & Provisions 21.00 69,799,498 §6,533,421
202,047,176 270,659,611
Total Equity & Liabilities 97 1,614325 l.l47.36£l9
Net Asset Value (NAY) Per Share 22,00 1741 15.83
\ The annexed notes 1-34 are an integral part of this statement of financial position.
| ( ) ; (7_»7 s eAdin
L - — L--&F_ ~ /) ’
Company réuy hicf Finane Ol\gcr " Munuging Director Chalrman

Signed in terms of our separate repont of even date annexed.

Mohammed Alamgir Kabir, FCA

Enrollment No : 1483
Place: Dhaka Partner

Dite: 26/10/2023 Kazi Zahir Khan & Co,
DVC . 231025“83A5592972 Chartered Accountants



Bangle Trac Rental Services PLC,

KALZILZAHIK KHAN & O
CHARTERED ACCOUNTAN

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive lncome
For the year ended 30 June 2023

- | Amount in Taka
CiEiaal Note |3 0332003 || 20212022
Gross Revenue 316324212 334,071,794
Value Added Tax(VAT) (38,703,158) (40,799 823)
Net Revenue 23.00 277,621,054 293271972
Cost of Sales 24,00 (191,897,647)  (215,701,000)
Gross Profit! (Loss) during the year 85,723,407 77,570,972
Operating Expenses
Administrative Expenses 25.00 (18,515,087) (23,793 ,829)
Selling & Distribution expenses 26.00 (1,479,723) (1,108,010)
(19,994,810) (24,901,839)
Operating Profit/ (Loss) during the vear 65,728,597 52,669,133
Non Openating Incoms 27.00 1,875,000 254,375
Finuncial Expenses 28.00 (20,178,190) (17,693,111)
(18,303,190) (17,438,736)
Prolit Before contribution to WPPF 47425407 35,230,397
Contribution to WPPF 21.02 (2,371,271) (1,761,320)
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 45,054,136 33,468,877
Income Tax Expenses 29.00 (13,516,241) (3,592,468)
Deterred Tax liwome/(Expenses) J0.00 11,498,467 (6,448,195)
(2,017,774) (10,040,663)
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 43,0365.}'2'2 2.].428&]‘
Other Comprehensive Income & .
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear 43,036,362 23428214
Basic Earnings Per Share (Per Value Tk. 10) 32.00 2.15 117

f The annexed notes 1-34 are an ntegral part of this statement of financial position.

Ml

as-2in @”

Mansfing Director Chairman

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.

Ca Secretary
Place: Dhaka
;l:;:vhaka 26/10/2023
’ 231026“83A9692972

Molﬁ-ﬁr Kabir, FCA
Enroliment No : 1483

Partner

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Amount in Taka
Share Money Retained
Particulars Share Capital Deposit Earnings Total Equity

Balance us at 01 July 2022 200,110,000 - 45427971 245,537,971
Net Profit During the vear ; A 43,036,362 43,036,362
Dividend During the year . - > <
Balance as at 30 June 2023 200,110,000 = 98464333 | 288574333

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2022

; Share Money Retained
Particulars Share Capital Deposit Earnings Total Equity

Balance as at 01 July 2021 200,100,000 200,000,000 21,999,757 422,099,757
Addition/(Adjustment) During the year 10,000 | (200,000,000) (199,990,000)
Net Profit During the yvear . - 23428214 23428214
Dividend During the vear - - . -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 200,110,000 - 45,427,971 245.537,971

The annexed notes 1-34 are an integral part of this statement of financial position,

Compa

Ay - ey

Ay

Dircctor

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.
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KAZI ZANIR KHAN & CO.
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2023
. Amount in Taka
S~ [N [ Soun23 || sovunaz

Cash flow from operating activities [A]
Cash received from revenue and others
Cash paid to employees and otlers

Cash Available from Operations

Finance Cost Paid
Income tax Paid
Net Cash Flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities| B|
Acquisition of non current asset

Financial Assuts

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

Cash Flow from finuncing activities|C|
Receipt/(refund) of Long term Loan

Issued Share Capital

Net Cah provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net cash inflow/(outflow)| A+B+C=D]|

Opening cash & cash equivalentsE)
Closing cash & cash equivalents |D+E=F|

Net Operating Cash Flaw Per Share(NOCFPS)

282218718 303213646
(154,917,813)  (225,779477)
127,300,905 77,434,169

(21,886,658) (15,539,553)
(7,591,627) (8,322,555)
97,822,620 53,572,062

(2501,327)  (177,310,909)
- (25,000,000)
(2,501,327)  (202,310,909)

195,956,439) 147,170,494
. 10,000
(95,956,439) 147,180,494

(635,146) (1,558,353)

1,959,859 3518212
1.324.713 |259£9
3100 4.89 2.68

The annexed notes 1-34 are an integral part of this statement of finencial position.

Signed in terms of ou- separate report of even date annexed,

./44‘4 2

anaging Director Chiirman
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Bangia Trac Rental Services PLC,
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2023

Significant accounting policies nnd other material information

100 Company Information
Legal Form of the Enterprise:
Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC, is a Public Limited Company registered under the Companies Act, 1994,
The Company was incorporated in Bangladesh on March 27, 2012 bearing registration number C-100369/12 .
And started it"s commercial eperation from Februnry 2019,

The company has converted from Private to Public limited compuny through Approval of the shareholders at
Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) which was held on 15t September 2022 and observance of required
tformalities as per laws.

Nature of Business Activities:

The Principal activities of the company arc to carry on the business to rent all sorts of machinery and
equipment's, sale of Used Equipment, engineering, construction, development, technical, transport, support
service, maintenance ete. and any other lawful business in Bangladesh and abroad.

Address of Registered Office:

The registered office & business address of the Company is located at House - 68, Road - 11, Bk - H,
Banani, Dhaka-1213.

200  Reporting Period

The financial report of the Company cover one year from 01 July to 30 June cach year and is followed
consistently,

2,01 Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT), which is both functional
currency and presentation currency of the Company.

202  Level of Precision
The figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

2,03  Components of Financial Statements
The financial statements include the following components as per IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
i. Statement of financial position;
il. Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income;
iil. Statement of changes in equity,
iv. Statement of cash flows &
v, Accounting policies and explanatory notes.

204 Comparative Information
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2021-22 for all numerical information of
the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows: and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is

relevant for understanding of the current period’s financial starements, Comparatives of previous year's
figures rearrunged where applicable.

2.05  Consistency of Presentation
‘The presentation and classification of all items in the financial statements have been retained from one period
1o another period unless where it is apparsnt that another presentation or classificution would be more

appropriste having regard to the criteria for the selection and application of aceaunting policies or changes is
required by another IFRSs.



KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2.06 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of informution are made in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, the Sccuritics and Exchange Rules. 1987 and other applicable
laws in Bangladesh and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as far us applicable for the
Company. IFRSs comprise of:
+ [ntemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
« International Accounting Standards (JASs)

2.07  Authorization for Issuc
These finuncial statements have been authorized for issued by the Board of Directors of the Company on 26
October 2023,

2.08  Accounting Assumptions
Accrual Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepered, except statement of cash flows, under accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with applicable IFRSs which do not vary from the requirements of the Companies
Act, 1994 and other laws and rules as applicable in Bangladesh,

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on i go ng concern basis. As per Management’s assessment, there is no
material uncertainty relating to events or conditions which may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a Roing concern.

2.09  Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following material

items in the statement of financial position. Non derivative financial instruments, available for sale are
measured at fair value,

2,10 Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preperation of financial statements requires management 1o make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income und
expenses.

The estimates and underlying assumptions ere based on past experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments
gbout the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions 1o accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

In particular, the key areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements include
depreciation, inventary valuation, accrued expenses and other payable .

2.11  Management of Capital
Capital consists of total equity attributable to the Shareholders. The Board of Directors monitors the level of
capital. The Compuny's policy is fo maintain a strong capital base 50 43 10 maintain investors, creditors and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.



KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

212 Application of standards
The following standards are applicable for the Company
IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
IAS 2 Inventorics
IAS 7 Statement of cash flows
TAS B Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
IAS 10 Events after the reporting period
TAS 12 Income taxes
IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment

IAS 19 Employee benefits
1AS 23 Borrowing costs

T1AS 24 Related party disclosures

IAS 33 Earnings Per Share

1AS 36 lmpairment

IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition ard Measurement
IFRS 7 Financial [nstruments, disclosures

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers

IFRS 16 Leases

301  lInventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost und net realizable value. Cost of inventories includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, Conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringmg them to their
existing location and condition. Cost of inventories is determined by using the weighted average cost formuly.
Where necessary, altowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow maoving items to adjust the carying
value of inventories to the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is based on estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,

302  Statement of Cash Flows
The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of IAS 7: "Statement of
Cash Flows", The cash generated from operating activities has been reported using the direct method. A
reconciliation of Net Operating Cash Flow from operating activities under the indirect method has also been
prepared,

303  Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Accaunting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principlss, bases, conventians, requirements and practices used by an
entity in preparing and presenting its financial statements.

An existing accounting policy should only be changed where a new accounting policy will result in reliable
and more relevant information being presented,

Any changes in accounting policy is required to be accounted for retrospectively except where it is not
practicable to determine the effect in prior periods.

Accounting Estimates

The prepazation of financial statements requies many estimates to be made on the hasis of latest available,
relisble information. The effect of a change in accounting estimates should therefore be recognized
prospectively,
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3,05

3.06

KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Prior Period Errors
A prior period error is where an error has occurred even though reliable information was available when
those financial statements were authorized for issue.

IAS § requires retrospective restatement of financial statements 10 adjust prior period ervors as if the prior
period error had never occurred.

Events after the Reporting Period
Eveats after the reporting period that provide additional information abouwt the Company’s position at the date
of statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concem assumption is not appropriste are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes when material.

Taxation

Current Tax:

Current tax provision is maintained at the rate of 30.00 % on business income and other non-operating
Income; at the rate of 15% for capital gain and at the rate of 20% on dividend income.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in compliance wih IAS 12 “Income Taxes”, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and lfabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for
taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates thit are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when
lheyrevase.basedmtbehwslhuhuvebommmedorsubﬂmﬁvelymluedbyuwrwporﬁngm
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity,

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
egainst which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized, Deferred tax assets are reviewed it each

reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
import dutics and non-refundable taxes (after deducting trade discount and rebates) and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the locasion and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the intended manner,

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing or upgrading any part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the futwre economic benefits embodied within the
replacement or upgradation will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit or Joss and
other comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged for the period on recucing balance method an property, plant & Equipment's except

Land. For additions during the period, depreciation is charged for the remaining days of the period and for
disposal, depreciation is charged up to the date of disposal.
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KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO.
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The rate of depreciation varies according to the estimated useful lives of the items of property. plant and
equipment, The depreciation rates for the current and comparative period are as follows;

Particulars Rate %
Building and Construction 10%
Generator & Machine 12%
Other Machineries & Tools 12%
Otfice Equipment 12%-~13%
1T Equipment 12%

Land is not depreciated as it deemed to have an infinite life.

Major maintenance activities
The Company incurs maintenance costs for all of its major items of property, plant and equipment. Repair
and maintenance costs are charged as expenses when incurred.

Gains or Losses on Disposal

An item of property, plant end equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expecied to arise from the continued use of the asset except generntor und machine. Any gein or Joss on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized &s other income / other expenses. In
case of generator and machine when it is financially not feasible to continue as a rent then it transfer to
inventory at book value and sale as a used equipment as per IAS 16 Para 68A,

IAS 16 Para 68A However, sn entity that, in the course of its ordinary activities, routinely seils items of
property, plant end equipment that it has held for rental to others shall transfer such assets o inventories at
their carrying amount when they cease to be rented and become held for sale. The proceeds from the sale of
such assets shall be recognized as revenue in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. [FRS 5 does not apply when assets that are held for sale in the ordinary course of business are
transferred to inventories.

Impairment of Asscts
No fact and circumstances indicate that Company's non-curreént assets including proprty, plant & equipment
may be impaired. Hence, no evaluation of recoverability of assets was performed.

Revenues

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive model for timeframe, measurement and criteris of revenue recognilion.
It replaces existing reventue recognition guidaice, including IAS 18, Revenue, IAS || Construction Contracts
and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programs. The Company recognizes as reveaue the amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services when (or as) it
transfers control to the customer. To achieve that core principle, this standurd establishes a five-step model as
follows:

* Identify the contract with a customer,

* Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

* Determine the transaction price;

* Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
* Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company generates revenues from sales and services. Consideration received from sales and services are
initially deferred, included in other liabilities. Considering the five steps model, the Company recognizes
revenue in the period when the Compuny satisfics the performance obligation by transferring a promised
g00ds or services to the customer,
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3.08 Financial Instruments
i. Non-Derivatives Financial Assets
The Company initially recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated. All other
financial sssets are recognized initially on the date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the transaction,

Financial assets and linbilities are netted off and the net wmount is presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company has a fegal right to offset the amounts and intends cither to settle
on i net busis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets include Accounts Receivable, Advance, Deposits and Prepayments, Cash and Cash
Equivalents.

Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivable represents the amounts due from institutional customers. Accounts receivables are stated
at original invoice amount without making any provision for doubtful debts.

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments
Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions,
adjustments or any other changes.

Deposits are measured at payment value,

Prepayments are initinlly measured at cost. After initial recognition prepayments are carried at cost less
charges to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash in transit and cash at bank including fixed deposits,
having maturity of three months or less, which are available for use by the Company without any restrictions.
Bank overdrafts thut are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Companys cash management
are included as u component of cash and cash equivalent. There is insignificant risk of change in value of the
sale,

il. Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities
The Company recognizes all financial liabilities on the transaction date which is the date the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognizes & financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Financial linbilities include accounts peyable and other payables.

Accounts and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are recognized when its contracturl obligations ansing from past events are certain

und settlement of which is expected 1o result in an outflow from the Company of resources embodying
economic benefits.

The Company recognizes a financial liability at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
3.09  Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

In accordance with TAS 19 “Employee Benefits”, the Company operates a contributory provident fund for its
cligible employees, The fund is funded by equal contributions of employees as well as the Company.
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Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has o gratuity scheme, which covers all of its permanent employees. After successfully
campletion of 6 (six) months, an employee is ligiblc for Gratuity based on the basic up to 10 years of scrvice
for completion of each calendar year, On completion of 10 years of service, gratuity will be 1.5 times of basic
as per law of the land

Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Fund

The Company provides 3% of its profit before tax after charging such expense as Workers' Profit
Participation and Welfare Fund in accordance with "The Bangladesh Labor Act- 2006 (Amendment- 2013),
We considered profit before tax during calculation of WPPF.

3.10  IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16, Published in January 2016 replaces the previous guidance in IAS 17 Leases. Under this revised
guidance, leases will be brought onto companics’ balance sheets, increasing the visibility of their assets and
liabilities. It further removes the classification of lcases as either operating leases or finance leases treating all
leases as finance leases from the perspective of the leases , thereby climinating the requirement for a lease
classification test. The revised guidance has an increased focus on who controls the asset and may change
which contracts are leases. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2019,

For Short Term Leases (Lease term of 12 months or Jess) and leases of Jow-value assets, the company has
opted to recognize u lease expenses on a straight-line basis as permitted by IFRS 16 . This expense is
presented within rent expenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

311 Earning per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted (when dilution is applicable) eamings per share (EPS) for its
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinury shareholders of
the Company with the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted
for the effect of change in number of shares for bonus issue. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributsble to ordinary shareholders and the weighted uverage number of ordinary shares
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. However, dilution of EPS iz not
applicable for these financial statements as there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the relevant
years,

312 Operating Segments
Operating segments are reported in & manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Management. The Management, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

3.13  Provisions and contingent liabilities and assels

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of 2 past event and it is probable that an outfiow of cconomic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is
ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation st the date
of statement of financial position, Where the Company expects some ot all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognized as n separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using o current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the inerease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance
cost.
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A contingent lisbility is 2 possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence of NON-OCCUITEnce of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company; or & present obligation that urises from past events bhut s not recognized beviuse
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient relizbility.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises ﬁ‘ompm:v:mslndwhoueximmo:wlﬂbeconﬁmwdwly
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company.

Contingent liabilitics and assets are not recognized in the statement of financial position of the Company.

3.14  Sharcholder’s loan
Tnitially the company taken this amount as Share money deposit. Subsequently, the said amount converted to
Shareholder’s loan tie per accord of respective Sharcholder. Accordingly the board of directors of Bangia Trac
Rental Services PLC. has given consent in this respect.

In the financial statements, the company(BTRSL) had BDT 20 crore as a share moaey deposit from its parent
company(Bangla Trac Ltd.) was reported and carried forward from 2020-2021, Later, the Board of
Directors{BoD) of BTRSL decided not to llot/issue any share against the share money deposit considering
the future business context and capital structure vide the Board of Directors meeting dated 02/09/2021.

After reviewing relevant information and considering the related Board of Directors meeting decision of
Bangla Trac Ltd. dated 09/09/2021, the company transferred BDT 20 crore to Sharcholder’s loan under other
non-current liabilities(Note no.16) heed of the financial position from Share Money Deposit{Note no.12)
during the year 2021-2022, However, the company consider the legal opinion to validate the said
Iransactions.

As per legal opinion vide reference no, LRILO/MI62/2023, dated-01 October 2023, from "Hassan M. S.
Azim, Barrister-at-Law, Advocate, Supreme Court of Bangladesh™ refers tzht “There is no legal bar for
Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC to continue the transaction as a ‘Shareholder's loan' in the financial
stutements of 30 June 2023 as per the earlier decision of its Board of Directors dated 2 September 2021

345 Risk and Uncertainties for Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements
Prepuration of financial statements in conformity with the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
requitsmnnuganemwmkecstinutcsudmnpdonsumaffectmcreponedmoumsofmdsmd
linbilifies and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates
are used for accounting of certain items such as depreciation and amortization and taxes.

316 Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs), Section 183 of the Companies Act,
1994, the Securities & Exchange Rules, 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
Notes to the Accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note | Amount in Taka
No. Tartesurs [ 3odun23 || 30dw2z |
400 Property, Plant and Equipment
Land & Land Developments 68,105,027 67,697,189
Building and Construction 1,669,701 1,855,223
Generator and Machines 535,134,870 657,260,609
Other Machineries & Tools 231,709 264,540
Office Fquipment 17,819 20,250
IT Equipment 159,668 181,440
—SOSNIRTOL 7T 7eas
There is no mortgage aguinst Land & Building as on 30 June 2023
Details of Property, Plant, Equipment and depreciation charged thercon have been presented in annexure- A.
Sale of Equipment's:
During the year the eatity solki Generator and Machineries amount of BDT 71,725,064 which had a carvied
amount of BDT 48,749,431 and accumulated depreciation was BDT 22,975,633, Gains or Losses on sale has
been recognized in the financial statements as per para 68A of [AS 16.
500 TInventories
Spare parts & Lube Ol | 114,839,603 | 115,302,242
114,839,603 115,302,242
5.01 Movement of Inventories
Opening Balance 115,302,242 83,045,431
Purchase during the year 24,821,031 59,874,473
Consumption during the year 25.283.670 27,617,662
114,839,603 115,302,242
Ageing of Inventories:
Less than 06 months 14,443 993 23,989,912
More than 06 but less than 12 months 9045480 21,057,180
More than 12 but less than 36 months 80,210,933 68,267,829
More than 36 months 11,139,197 1,987,321
114,839,603 115,302,242 |
6.00  Accounts and Others Receivable
Trade Receivable-Rental Engine 107,815,003 08357918
Trade Receivable-Rental Machine 78,584,347 98.857.796
Interest Receivable 2109375 234375
Other Receivable 2,269,007 887,380
190,777,732 198,337,469
Related party transactions details are given in note no, 33
6.01  Ageing of Receivable
Less than 06 months 61,818,287 87300461
More than 06 but less than 12 months 65,165,983 51,690,446
More than |2 months 63,793,462 59,346,562
190,777,732 198,337,469
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
Notes to the Accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note Amount in Taka
No. Tty Wdun23 || 30-Jundl
Subsequent collection amount:
As on 30 Seplember 2023 the company has collected an amount of BDT 68,182,957 from total reccivable of
30 June 2023, out of which BDT 32,163,114 was collected from more than 12 Months recaivable,
6,02 Movement
Opening Balance 108,337,469 232,057,502
Revenue during the year 279,496,054 293,506,347
Collection during the year 287,055,791 327,226,380
Closing Balance 190,777,732 198,337,469
7.00  later-Company Loan
Acom Infrastructure Services Ltd. - 56,852,490
Bangla Trac Manufecturing Lid, 67,674 67,674
A &
Related party transactions details are given in note no. 33
800 Advance, Deposits & Pre-payment
Advance to executive & others 6,833,738 536,614
Advance to supplier 404,716 894,113
Advance installment-term loan 3,084,117 3,084,117
Advance Income Tax 21,673,046 14,081,419
VAT Deposit 2,272,699 3,744,483
Other Advances 17,993 222 582
3206309 22563328
Advance installment-term loan:
United Finance Limited deducted amount to Taka 2,584,117 and 500,000 as lease margin which is
cquivalents fo the lease installment amount and the amount will be adjusted with final installment.
9.00 Financial Assets
FDR in Islamic Finance and Investment LTD. [ 25,000,000 25,000,000 |
25,000,000 25,000,000
As per the sanction term FDR amount to Taka 25,000,000 is lien with Islamic Finance and Investment
Limited against Term loan under note 13,
1000 Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash in hand 293,505 1,360,000
Cash at bank (Note:10.01) 1,031,208 599,859
1,324,713 l!959&9
10.01 Cash at Bank
Name of the Bank
Prime Bank Limited(CD sccount- 2 429341 475,672
Eastern Bank Limited (SND Accoun 274,529 56,951
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited (CD . 13,622 14,657
One Bank Limited (CD Account-'1{ 203,097 -
Meghna Bank Limited( CD Account 10,000 10,000
One Bank Limited (CD Account- 1061470002919) 5,000 -
Trust Bank Limited(CD Account- "00560210004818) 35,000 -
BKASH- 1501201806446003 20,619 42,579
IQJI& 599£S9

90



KAZI ZAHIR KHAN & CO,
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,
Notes to the Accounts
For the vear ended 30 June 2023
Note Amount in Taka
No. Fationiors Jodun2d || 30-Jun22
11.00  Share Capitul
a) Authorized Capital:
150,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk10 each 1&&,000 M—
b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Capizal:
20,011,000 ordinary shares of Tk 10 cuch 200,110,000 200,110,000
Details of the shureholding are as under:
No. of Shares
Name of the Sharcholders Fodun-23 30-dun22
Bangla Trac Limited 16,001,799 19,997,000 160,017,990 199,970,000
Tarique Ekramul FHaque 1,715,229 5,000 17,15229% 50,000
PBmgln Trac Holdings Ltd. 5,000 5.000 50,000 50,000
Nazmin Hugue 1,715,229 1.000 17,152,290 10,000
Md. Zainal Abedin $71,7143 1,000 5,717,430 10,000
Bangla Trac Communication Lid. 1,000 1,000 10,000 10,000
B-Truc Technologies Limited 1,000 1,000 10,000 10,000
Total 20,011 10|0| l& 200|l 10|000 200‘1 lm
1200 Retained Earnings
Opening Bulunce 45,427,971 21,999,757
Add : Profit(Loss) for the Year 43,036,362 23428214
Closing Balance 88,464,333 45427971
13.00 Long Term Liabilities
United Finance Limited 9829310 || §7.486,385
Tslamic Finance and Investment Lid, 51,552,350 75404671
61,381,660 132,891,056
14,00 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Carrying Amount 537,213,767 659,582,068
Tax Base (337,825.675) (421,865,751
Taxable Temporary Difference 199,388,092 237,716,317
Effective Tax Rate [ 30.00% || 30.00% |
Deferred Tax Liability 59,816,428 71,314,895
1500 Sharecholder’s Loan
Bangla Trac Limited 200,000,000 200,000,000
200,000,000 200,000,000
Related party transactions details are given in note no. 33
16.00 Other Non-Current liabilities
Payable Against Assets Purchase 58,287,825 134,560,315
Payable against Land Purchase 25,697,189 25,697,189
Payable to Acorn Limited 71,602,053 63,273,558
Payable against PF & GF 4,208,161 3427724

Related party transactions details are given in note no, 33

159,795,228 226,958,786
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
Notes to the Accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note Amount in Taka
No. Particolas “ 0Jun-23 || 30-Jun-22
17.00  Accounts Payable .
Payable to Suppliers and Others 26,621,469 24,845,204
Payable 10 Bangla Trac Limited 2,481,829 -
e, ]O3208 24,845,204
Related party transactions details are given in note no. 33
15,00 Inter-Company Loan
Bangla Trac Limited | 34,428,906 |[ 104,874,260 |
34,428,906 104,879,260
Related party transuctions details are given in note no. 33
19.00 Long Term Loan Current Maturity
United Finance Limited 38,391,439 51,809,702
Islamic Finance and Investment LTD, 23,852,319 21,283,233
62,243,758 73,092,937
20,00 Advance Received from Cusfomers
Advance Received from Customers | 6,471,716 || 11,308,789 |
6,471,716 11,308,789
2100 Liabilities and Provisions
Payable to Employee 724,416 881,283
Provision for Expenses(Note ; 21.01) 6208914 8,833,482
Provision for Audit fees 460,000 300,000
Provision for WPPF (Note : 21,03) 4,132,791 1,761,520
Income Tax Provision 58,273,377 44,757,136
OI0498 __ S655.421
21.01 Provision for expenses )
Provision For Expense 5,727,574 n 6,645,674
Provision For Interest 481,340 2,189,808
6,208 914 8,833,482
21.02 WPPF Provision During the Year
Net Profit Before Tax 47425407 35230397
Percentage of Profit Sharing as Required by Law (Note-3,09) 5% 5%
2,371,271 1,761,520
2103 Provision for WPPF
Opening Balance 1,761,520 -
Add : Duning the Year 2,371,271 1,761,520
Closing Balance 4,132,791 1,761,520
The policy of WPPF is under process. However, the company has made provisions for the said purpose so
that once the policy is approved by the competent authority, eligible amounts can be disbursed to the relevant
stakeholders,
2200 Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share
Total Assets 971,614,825 1,147,362,319
Less: Total Liabilities (683,040,492) (901,824,348)
Add: Intangible assets/Liabilities (Deferred Tax Liabilities) 59,816,428 71,314,895
Equity Attributable to the Owners of the Company 390,761 316
Number of Ordinary Shares 20,011,000 20,010,667
Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share 17.41 15,83
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
Notes to the Accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note Amount in Taka
No. RRrGantors 30-Jun23 [ 30-Jun-22
23.00  Revenue
Gensets Rental 198,990,180 153,594 646
Machines Rental 63,934,948 115,697,815
Sale of Used Equipment 42,140,000 45,737279
Other Revenue 11,239,085 19,042,054
316,324,212 334,071,794
Less: VAT | (38,703.158)| | (40,799,823)]
— TS 93amiem
2400  Cost of Revenue
Spare parts, Lube Oil & Service Charge 25,283,670 27,617,662
Operator wages 28,375,843 36,186,559
Travelling- Local 1,492,672 710228
Security Expenses 3,763,165 3,753,860
Carriage expenses 8,763,069 9,657,152
Cost of Used equipment 48,749,431 53,774,069
Depreciation 75,469,797 83,701,470
191,897,647 215,701,000
Sale of Used Equipment and its cost determined considering para 68A of IAS 16. For details please refer to
note 3.06
25.00  Administrative Expenses
Salary & Allowance 11,634,717 20.249.219
Medical Expense 337402 227,100
Professional Fees & Expenses 3,024,000 582,974
Books & Periodic 3,046 1,550
Dress/Uniform 185252 70,384
Entertainment 100,509 43,507
Postage & Courier 4,570 7,952
Registration & Renewal 743,069 1,547,710
Maobile & Telephone 310,189 274,540
Repair & Maintenance 166,725 27,882
Utilities 75,000 20,000
Rent Expense 1,678,046 615,720
Health & Safety - 67,172
Depreciation 242,562 58,119
18,515,087 23,793 829
26.00  Selling & Distribution Expenses
Promotional expense 1,150,530 1,107,428
Trade Fair 326916 -
Discount- Cash 2,277 582
1,479,723 1,108,010
2700 Non Operating Income
Interest on FDR [ 1,875,000 | | 254,375 |
1,875,000 254,375
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Notes to the Accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note Amount in Taka
No. S 0Jun23 || 30-Jun22
28.00  Financial Expenyes
Interest on Long Term Loan 19,985,363 17,543,062
Bank Chasges 192,827 150,049
20,178,190 7,693,111
2900  Income Tax Expenses 13,516,241 I 3,592,468 |
13,516,241 3,592,468
30.00  Deferred Tax Income/(Expenses)
Opening balance of deferred tax liabilities 71,314,895 64,866,700
Closing balance of deferred tax liabilities (59.816,428) (71,314,895)
1 lﬁ”ﬁ‘? ‘wlg!
30.01  Details calculation ref, o note no. 14 of the Financial Statement
3100 Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 97,822,620 33,572,062
Number of Ordinary Shares 20,011,000 20,010,667
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) 4.89 2.68
31O Reconcilintion of net profit with cash flows from operating nctivities
Profit after tax 43,036,362 23,428,214
Non-cash/ Non-operating Items : [ 68,948,323 | [ 98,010,199 |
Depreciation 75,712,359 83,739,589
(Profit)'Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 6,609,431 8,036,790
Deferred Tax (11,498,467) 6,448,195
Income from FDR (1,875,000) (234,375)
Changes in working Capital | (N,l62.0_6§i| | (67,866,351 !]
(IncreaselDecrease in Inventories 462,639 (32256,811 ’W
(Increase)Decrease in Accounts Receivable 9433737 33954 408
(Increase)Decrease in Loans, Advances & Deposits (4,131,354) (3,752,735)
(IncreaseNDecrease in Advince Income Tax (7,591,627) (8,322,554)
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors and Other Pavables 4258004 7,561,723
Increase/(Decrease) Advance received from customers (4,837.073) (24,032,734)
[ncrease/(Decrease) Other Non-Current lisbilities {67,163,558) (95,938,763)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses- Lisbilities & Provil (250,164)| 5,591,368
Increase/{Decrease) in Income Tax Payable 13,516,241 3,592 468
Fixed Assets sold as per IAS16 Para 68A 42,140,000 45,737,279
Net cash Generated from Operating Activities 97,822,620 53,572,062
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC.
Notes to the Aceounts
For the year ended 30 June 2023
Note Amount in Taka
No. Prtiemons 30-Jun-23 || 30-Jun-22
32.00  Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Caleulation of eamings per share (EPS) is as under :
Eamings attributable to the ordinary sharzholders
Profit for the Year 43,036,362 231428214
No. of ordinary equity shares 20,011,000 20,011,000
Weighted nverage no. of equity shares outstanding (Note 20,011,000 20,010,667
Earnings Per share (EPS) for the Year 2.15 1.17
32.01 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the Year is the number of ordinary
2022-2023 2021-2022
Outstanding shares L 20,011,000 }{ 20,010,667 |
20,011,000 20,010,667
32,02 Diluted Earning Per Share

No diluted eamnings per share is required to be caleulated for the Year as there was no motive for dilution
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Bangla Trac Rental Services PLC,
Notes to the Accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2023

34.00 Operating segments

A.  Basis for segmentation
The Company has following two strategic divisions, which are its reportable segments, These divisions
offer different services and are managed separately .

The following summury describes the operations of each reportable segment.

Reportable segments Operations |
Rental Services Rent of all sorts of machinery and equipment's, sale of Used|
Equipments
Consultancy Services Consultancy Services

These two reportable segments are the strategic business units of the company and are mansged separately
basad on the Company's management and internal reporting structure. For each of the strategic business
units, the management committee reviews internal management report on at least @ monthly basis,
Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal management
reports that are reviewed by the Company's Management Committee, Segment profit is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of
certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

B, Information about reportable segments
Information related to cach reportable segment is set out below, Segment profit before tax is used to
measure performance because managsmen: believes that this information is the most relevant in evaluating
the results of the respective segments relutive to other entities that operate in the same industries,

Reportuble segments
O July 2022 to 30 June 2023
. Consultancy
Particulars Rental Services Bvrelcas Total
Revenue 267,847,937 9,773,117 277,621,054
Cost of sales (185,056,466) (6,841,181) (191,897,647)
Gross profit 82,791,471 2,931,936 gm,«n
Operating cxpenses
Administrative expenses (17,246 ,800) (1,268,287) (18,515,087)
Selling and distribution expenses (383,443) - (1,479,723)
(17,630,243 (1,268,287) (19,994.810)
Profit from operation 65.!6!;.:28 1,663,649 6&71597
Reportable segments
01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022
Particulars Rental Services Consaltancy Total
Services
Revenue 276,713,664 16,558,308 203271972
Cost of sales (203,853,531) (11,847,469) (215,701,000)

Gross profit 72,860,133 4,710,839 71570972
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Operating expenses
Administrative expenses (22,450,950) (1,342,879) (23,793,829)
Selling and distribution expenscs (1,108,010) - (1,108,010)

(23,558,960) (1,342,879) (24,901,839)
Profit from operation 49,301,173 3,367,960 52,669,133
Operating segments (continued)
Reconciliation of information on reportable segments.

Particulars Rental Services || Consultancy " Total
Services

i. Revenues
Total revenue for reportable segments 23.00 277621054 293271972
Revenue for other scgments - -
Total revenue 27722 1054 293271972
ii. Profit before tax
Total operating profit before tax for reportable segments 65,728,597 52,669,133
Amount not related 1o reported segments (i) (20,674 461) (19,200,256)
Total profit before tax ﬂllu B!“g'ﬂ
iil. Amount not related to reportable segments
Other income 27.00 1,875,000 254375
Finance costs 28.00 (20,178,190) (17.693,111)
Contribution to Workers' Profit 21.02 (2371.271) (1,761,520)

—__CoeTden (19200256

Considering the present size and operations of the Compuny, segmontal sssets and lisbilities pre not
considered to be critical for regular review by the management.

Accordingly no disclosure is made refating to the segmental assets and liabilities.
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(b) Information as is required under section 186 of the Companies Act,1994 relating to
holding company:

BTL Financial Statement as attachments.
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Bangla Trac Limited
Auditor's Report and Audited Financlal statements
As at & for ihe yesr ended 30 Juns, 2022
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(w JU Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountarts

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BANGLA TRAC LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

\We have audied the financial statemerts of Bangla Trac Limited (the company) which comprise the statement of
financial positica as 2 30 June, 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes ir equity
and stalement of cash flows for the year then erded, and notes 10 the financial staterments, Including a summary of
significant accounting palicies.

In our opirion. the accompanying financial statements give true and fair view of, in all matenal respects, the financial
pasition of the Company as at 30 June, 2022, of s financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance wih intematicnal Financial Reporing Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sud? in acoordance with International Stardards on Auditing {1SAs). Our responsibilites under

shese slandards are futher descrioed in the Auditor's Responsibiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
. olourrapo'tWenhamdwdlmcommmmmﬁmmemdmummanmm
our audit of the finandial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fuifdled our other ethical responsibities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidencs we have obtaned Is sufficent and appropriate
to prowide 3 besis for our cpinion.

mmmammmmcmmmmmammonmwm

mmmnmmtamwmﬁ:wammunmmmmmm
IFRSs, and for such infernal contro! as managament determines is necassary to ensble the preparation of financisl
statements that are free from material misstatement, whather due lo fraud or eor,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abfiity to continue as
a going concern, discloging, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of
accoumunleummmmmmndsblqmmmmyawmowaion&orhasmmm
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemaents

Otuohiouivasmwobunreasonamassmabunmaher!heﬁnmdalslalmntsaavmebmbeem
material misstaiement, whether due 1o fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that indludes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted In acoordance with
1SAs will always detect a material misstatemert when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or emor and are
considered materia If, Individually or in the aggregate, they cculd reasonably be axpected to influerce the economic
decisians of users taken on the basis of thesa financia’ statements.

a National Office: Housa 170 {15t & 4th floor), Lane 3, New DOHS, Mohakhati, Dhaka-1206, Telephone: + 83-02-8712666, Emall: jac bd cadgmall.com
Branch Office: Bananta Villa (6th floor), Sulte 85, House 105, Road 04, Block B, Banany, Ohaka-1213, Telephane; 02-55033258-9, Email: info,jJacbd@gmail com
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W J U Ahmed & Co.

Chartesed Accountants

As pant of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional udgment and maintzin professional skapticsm
througnout the audit. We adso:

« Identify and assess the nsks of material misslatemant of the financial statements, whesher due to fraud or eror
design and pedform audil procedures responsive to those sks. and oblain sudit evidence that Is sufficlent anc
appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting & material misstaiement resuling from fraud
s higher than for one resulting from emoe. as fraud may invoive colusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

« Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant Lo the audit in crder to design audt procedures that are
sppropriate in Ihe circumstances, but nol for the purpese of expressing an opinlon on the effectiveness of the
Company s intemal control.

« Evaluate tne approprialeness of acoounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

« Conciude on the aspropnateness of management’s Lse of the gaing concem bass of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence oblained, whether a matenal uncerainty exists related to events or condiions that may cast
signficant doubt on the Company's atility to continue a5 a geing concem, if we conclude that a matenal uncertainty
exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financal slatements
or, If such disckosures are inadequate, to modfy our opinicn. Our conclusicns are tased on the audit eviderce
oblained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future evenis or conditions may cause the Company
0ease 10 conlinue as 2 Loing Concer,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and timng
of the audit and significant audi findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we idenify during
our audit,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Raquirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1954, we aiso report e fotlowing:

) we have obtained all he information ahd explanasons which to the best of our knowledge and befief were
necessary forthe purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof:

il mouropinion.propetboohotaemuruasmundwwmr:aenkeptbymocmmnysofurasilappsam
from our examination of these books;

iii) the statement of financial positicn and statement of profit or foss and other comprehansive income dealt with by
the repoet are In agreement wih the books of account and relums.

T Al ;
_— AT s G
Date: 17 Nov 01 ngl Number 0751
J U Ahmed & Co.

Charered Accountants
ove: 22 (12007 S1AS 87232 CF
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Bangla Trac Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June, 2022

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, clant & equipment
Intangible assels

Capual work in progress
Other non current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Accounts recelvabe

Advances, deposits & pre-payments
Loan 1o sister concems

Cash and cash equivalenis

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Shareholder’s equity
Shae capital

Revaluation & olher reserve
Retaned eamings

Non-current liabllities
Long term foan

Other ong term liabsties
Defferad tax {asset)liability

Current liablitties and provisions
Short term loan

Loan from sister<concams

Long term loan current maturity
Accounts payable

Other liabilities & provisions
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

The annexad notes form an integral part of these financial sialements

Amount in Taka
Notes | —So82022 || 30-06:2021
6978936587  7,004,379.561
400 3,578,169 659 3,722,059,344
500 111,615,541 124,148 486
6.00 7362720 5,383 054
7.00 3,181,788 677 3,181,788.877
6,726,696,013 6,782,553,824
8.00 2,806,572,722 2902329377
900 2.698,102,649 2,457 751 6586
10.00 877,541,109 239,862,731
11.00 325,852923 252,523.958
12.00 14,526,610 239,596,072
3705632610 13816933385
4,342,839 4 909
13.00 100,199.900 9,999,900
14.00 2574411435 2574411435
15.00 1,668,227 987 1472128574
3,148,855 556 3,254,968,393
18.00 24723842 2,607,763,889
17.00 652,343,238 620,322,014
1800 24,113,886 26,882,450
§,213,936,732 6,465,425,083
19.00 4,120,245 876 4,128,901136
20.00 522,722,398 450,037 243
21.00 14,088,112 23032674
20 715,792,876 1.067.516.974
23.00 B41,085.470 I 765,537,056 |
M

LM Gyt 107 g

T s
WAL A haw a4l
Muu:}noouuu}:ﬁm

g:' 17 Nov 262

Enrcliment Na: 0751
Partner
JU Ahmed & Co,

Chartered Accountants
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Bangla Trac Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June, 2022
| Amount in Taka |

| Notes || 2021-2022 |[ 2020-2021 |
Revenues 2400 011,278,871 \99b,006.4
Cost of revenues 25.00 (3,509,504 587) {3,483,440,025)
Gross profit 01, 212,626,
Operating expenses (490,202,001 {481,392,132)
Administralive expenses 26.00 15,241,075 (464 351,953)
Selling and distribution expenses 2700 (14,960,926) (17,040,179)
Operating profit 1,011.272,825 1,031,234 267
Other incomef{loss) 28,00 154 412,855 158,485,181
Financial charges 2500 {672,145,546) {665,377 ,353)
Profit before tax & WPPF 7 524,352,005
Provision for WPPF 230 (23,501,916) (2£,969,147)
Profit before tax 470,036,318 499,362,048
Current tax 30.00 (30,351,248) {34,936,748)
Deferred tax income/(expenses) 31.00 2,768 594 $,918,092
Net profit after tax 442 455 664 470,364,294
Other comprehensive income
Changes in fair value gainfloss) | - |l -

Total comprehensive income

442,455 664 470,364,294

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Chisf Ft i r
Dhaka
Dale 17 Moy 2022

WC: 221200875\ ASET22 &7

-

Chief Executive Officer

Managing Director

(v ol
Chairman

JL! ,uu,u,l.&(,/;.
Md. Mumlook Hossaln FCA

Enroliment No, 0751
Pariner
J U Ahmed & Co,

Charterad Accountants
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Bangla Trac Limited
Statement of Cash flows
For the year ended 30 June, 2022

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Recaived from Customers & Cthers
Cash Paid 1o Suppliers & others
Cash Available from Operations

Fnance Cost Pax
Income Tax Paid
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addiglon of Fixed Assels

Sales Proceed of Fixed Assets

Dividend Received

Investment made

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shert Term Loan from Bank/Others

Share capial Issued duing Ihe year

Long Term Loan from Bank/Others

Net Cash (Used in)Provided by Financing Activities

D. Net Cash Inflowf (Outflow) {A+B+C)
E. Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Closing (D+E)

[ Amount in Taka |
| ! l | l
4 93451,173 | 4,874 642278
(3.795.929,085)| | (3.926,572.357)
1,140,522,108 1,048,069 891
{578,089 846) (655,339 346)
{201,659 278) {155,837 644)
260,762,984 237,092,901
(58,303,058) (47 64D, 245)
15,277,640 229,932
; 122,400,000
. 400,000,000
#3025 418) (325,010,317
{329,563,785)| 2174111
200,000 -
{103.343,243) 202.142,597
{442,807 ,028) 314,316,708
{225,068,462) 226,399,292
239,596,072 13,196,780
14,526,610 230,506,072

The annexed notes form an integral pan of these Financial Statements.

Chief Financial M

Chaka
Cate: 77 MOV M2

Cagsyie i

Chief Executive Officor

Managing Director

oy
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BANGLA TRAC LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2022

1 Reporting entity

1.1 Company profile
Bangla Trac Limited (BTL) is a private company iimted by shares and regisiered in Bangiadesh under the
Compenies Act, 1394 on 2 October 2004 bearing Ihe registration number C-54436 (1122)/04.

The consoicated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2022 comprise
the Company's and ts subsidiaries {logether referrad 10 as the *Group’ and individuailly as “Group antities”).

1.2 Nature of business

Sangla Trac Limitec (conducting business under the name Bangla CAT'} was zppointed as a oealer for
Caterpilar Engines & Equipment in Banglacesh on October 11, 2004 1t is the only Authorized Dealer of
Caterpélar INC USA in Bargladesh

1.3 Address of registered office

The registared office & business address of the Company is located al House - 68, Road - '1, Block-H,
Banani, Dhaka-1213.

2 Basis of preparation and presentation
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared an a gong concern basis following accrual basis of acoounting
except for siatement of cash fiows In accordance with the Inlemational Accounting Slandards (IASs),
intematicnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS3) and the Comganies Act 1994, The tishe and format of
these financial statements follow the requirements of IASs and IFRSs which are 10 some extent different from
the requirsment of the Companies Act 1994, However. such differences are not matenial and in the view of
management IFRSs tites and format grve better presentalion to tha stakeholders.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on Nistorical cost basis except for inveniones which are
measured at lower of cost and net reaiizable value, and for certain assets which are stated either at ravalued
amount or fair manket value as explained in fhe accompanying notes

2.3 Reporting period

The fnancia statements of the company cover twelve months (12} months from July 1 to June 30 and is
fodewed consistently,

2.4 Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presenied in Bangladesh Taha (Taka/TK/BOT), which is bath furctional and
presentation cumency of the Company. The amaunts in these financal statements have been rounded off to
the neares! Taka, unisss stated othermse indicated.
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2.5 Consistency of presentation

The presentaton and ciassification of &b 4ems in the financial statements have been relained Irom cne period
1o another penad unless whers 1t is apparent that another presentation or ciassification would be more
acproprate having regard to the criteria for the selection and application of accounting policies or changes Is
required by anather [FRS

Comparatve informalicn has besn discksed for all numerical nformation In the finencial statements and also
the narrative and descriptive nformation when ¢ is relevant for understanding of the cument peniod's financial
statements To fadlitale compansan, cenain relevant belances petainag Lo the previous period have been
rearrangedireciassified whenever considerad necassary to confirm to cument pencd's presenation,

2.6 Components of ths financial statements

According 1o the Intemalional Accourting Stancards )IAS) 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements™, the
complete set of finarcial statements inciude the following components:

i) Statement of Financal Pogibon

i) Statement of Profit or Loss 2nd Cther Comprehensive

iil) Statement of Changes in Equity

v} Statemenl of Cash Flows

v) Notes comprising 2 summary of signicant accounting policies and othsr explanaiory
infermation

2.7 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial stetemeants in conformty with the Internaticnal Fnancial Reporting Starxdarus
(FRSs) requires management to maka [udgments, estimates and assumgtions tnal affect the application of
accounting policies and Ihe reported amounts of assels, liabilities, ncome 2nd expanses and dsclosures of
contngert assets and Eabilites at the time of the preparation ¢f the financial siatements. The estmates and
underlying assumations are based on past experience and wvarious other factars that are oelieved 1o be
reasonable under the circumstances, (he result of which form the tasis of making judgments about the carrying
valuzs of assets and fiabilites that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ fom
these estmales.

Estmales and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Rewisions o eslimates ae
recognized prospectively

in particular, information about significant areas of estimation and judgments ¥ aoplying accounting palicies
that have the mosi significant affect on the amount recognized in the financial siatements are descnbed n the
following notes:

Note 04: Property. plant and equipment

Note 05: Infangitde assets

Note {9: Accourts recevables

Mote 11: Inventeries

Note 20 Other long-term liatilties (Employes Berefits and Bond payable)
Nete 21 Defarred tax asset

Note 26; Other liabBities & Provision

Noe 27 Accruals and other payables

2.8 Statement of cash flows

Statament of cash tiows is prepared under direct method in accordance with Intematonal Accourting Standard
(1AS).7 *Statement of cash fiows”
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2.9 Application of standards
The following standards are applicable for the Group,

IAS 1 Presentation of fnancial statements

1AS 2 Inventones

1AS 7 Statement of cash flows

14S 8 Accounting pofices, changes in accounting estimates and emors
IAS 10 Events after the reporting period

IAS 12 Income taxes

IAS 16 Propenty, plart and equipment

IAS 17 Leases

IAS 19 Employee benefits

IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

IAS 23 Borrowing costs

IAS 24 Related parly disclosurss

IAS 28 Investments in assocaates

1AS 35 Impaiment

1AS 37 Provisions, contingent fiabllities and contingent assets
IAS 38 Intangible assets

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recagnition and Measurement
IFRS 7 Financial instruments, disciosures

IFRS @ Financal Instruments

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers

IFRS 15 Leases

2.10 Accounting Assumptions
Accrual Basis of Accounting

The financial stataments have been prepared, excepl statement of cash flows, under acorval tass of
accounting in accordance with appicable 'FRSs which de not vary from the requirements of the Companes
Act, 1834 and other laws and rules as appiicable  Bangtadesh.

Going Concern

The Fnancal statements are prepared on a going concerm basis, As per Management's assessment, there I
no matenal uncertainty relaing to events or condiions which may cast doubt upon the Company’s abity to
continue as a going concesn

2.11 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Accounting Policies

Accounting palicies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, requirements ana practices used by an
entity in prepading and presenting ds financial siakements,

An exisling accounting policy should only be changed where a new accounting poficy wl result in reliatie
and more relevant mformation being presentad,

Any changes in accounting polity is fequired % be accounted for retrospectively except where it is not
practicabie to determine the effect in prior penods

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financal statements requires many esbmates 10 be made on the basis of iatest availabie,
reliable informaticn.
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The effect of a change in accounting eshmates should therefore be recognized prespectively.
Prior Period Errors

A prior period error is where an error has occurred even though refiable information was avaiable
when those finandal statements were autherized for issue.

IAS 8 requires retrospective restatement of financial statements to adjust prior period errors as |f
the prior period error had never occurred

3 Significant accounting policies

The 2ccaunting policies set out balow have been apphed consstently to al penocs presented n thass financial
statements, and have teen applied consistently

A. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measuremant

Items of property, plant and equipment, excuding Feehold land, fraehoid budding and leasenold tuilding are
measured at cost less accumulzled deprediation and accumulated impairment loss2s, if any. Freehold land is
measured &t revalued amount. The cost of 2n dem of property, plamt and equipment comprises its purchase
srica, impon dities and non-refuncable taxes (after deductng trade discount and rebates) and any cosls
directly attributable o bangng he assels to the kcation and condtion necessary for It to be cagable of
gperating in e aviencad manner

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing or uparading any pan of an ilem of property, piant and equipment s recognized in the
carmying amount of the item it is probable Ihat the future economic tenefits embodied within the replacement
or upgradatica will fow to the Company and s cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-10-day

servicng of property, plent and squpment &re recognized in the statemeant of profit or loss and other
comprenensive income as incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged for the penoa on reducing balance method on all fixed assets other than land. For
adations during the pericd, decreciation is charged for the remaining days of the penod and for disposal,
depreciation is charged up to the date of digposal.

Depreciation of tullding, rental assels and tools are charged in cost of revenue as they are directly related
‘wilh revenue generaticn,

The rate of depreciation varies aocording 10 the estmated useful lives of the items of propery, plant and
aquipment. Tha depreciation rates for the cusrent and comparalive penod are as oliows

Particulars - Rate
Bulding e e e e T S m et I e
_Piantand Machinery A%
Generalor & Machire (Renal) [ 2. S
Office Equipment . 0%
IT Equipment 3 e i 33%
Tools-Hands 5%
Tools:Others _ o
Teols- Diagnostic .
Furniture & Fixture 20%
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VeliclesNew 15%

Vehicles-Recondtion 2%

Yehicies-Attachments - B 33%

Software- ERP 10%

Software- Others 30%
Major maintenance activities

The Company incurs maintenance costs for 2 of its major items of property, plant and equipmert. Repairand
mantenance cos!s are charged as expenses when incurred

Gains or losses on disposal

An tem of property, plant and equpmen is dereccgnized upon dsposal or when o future economic benedits
are expected to anse from the cominued use of the assel Any gain or loss on dispesal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is Getermined as 1he diference belween ssles proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and & recognized as alhar Income o¢ other expense.

Capital Work-in-progress

Capita work in progress consists of acquisition costs, capital components and related installation cost, until
ihe date when the asset Is ready to use for its intended purpose, In case of import of components, capital work
in progress is racognized when risks and rewards associated with such assets are transierred to the Company.

Impairment
The carmying amount of the enlity's property, plant and equipment 2re reviewed at each reporiing date to
determne whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assel's racovarabia

amaount ls estimated. However, no such conditons that might be suggestive of a heightened risk of imparment
of assels exsted at the reporting date,

Intangible Assets
Recognition and Measurement

Intargitie assals are measured at cosl less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss. If
any. Intangible asset is recognized wien 2 the conddions for recognition are met as per IAS 38 ‘Intangible
Assets” The cost of the intangibie assels comprsas its purchase pace. impor duties, non-refundatle taxes
and any directly atinbutabie cost of preparing the asset for s intended use,

Subsequent Expenditure

Sutsequent expendiurs is capitalized only when it is probabie that the future econemic tenefits embodied
within the axpenditiure will flow to the Company and ils cost can be measured raiiably. Af other expendiiures
ara recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ncome when incurreg.

Amortization

Amortization s recognized i the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on reducing
nalance method over the eslimaled useful fves of intangibie assats, from the date that they are available for
use

Ime Company has recognized intangdie asset for acquisition of ERP software & ather software for business
use. Amortization is caiculated to allocale the cost of the software using the reducing balance methad over
the astimated useful ife. The amorization expenses 3 allocated between cost of revenue and admnistrabion
expensss basad on the number of users for the respective purposa.
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C. Leases

A new Standard IFRS 16, Leases, has been made affeciive for the reporting penod beginning cn or after 1
January 2019. The new standard has introducad a singie on-balance sheat lease accounting modei for leases
and replaces the previousy adopted IAS 17 Leases. The Company has been consistently recording its
underlying assets acquired under ‘ease arangement 3s Assels and ihe corespanding cbligation as Liatilities
in the financial siatements. Lease payments made are apportiored tetween the finance expenses and the
reguction of outstanding lease liabfity which are in compliance with [FRS 16, axcepting the classification of
the eased assels as ‘Right of-use assets’ in the Statement of Financial Position. The Compary has not eary
adopted IFRS 16 in preparing the financiai statements and intends 1o do so when t becomes affective ‘or the
Company. This howaver, has no material impact on the reported financal slatements,

A finance lease 18 3 ‘ease (hal tansers substanbaly 2l the rigks and rewards nadenial to ownership of an
assel Title may or may not be transfemed eventualy. Financial leases sre capaiized st the commencement
of the lease term at amounts equal 1o the fair value of the leased praperty or, If lowsr, Ine present valug of the
rnimum jease payments

Assels under finance leases are recogmzed In the statement of financal postion and the future lease
payments are recognized as fease liability. Expenses for the perod correspond o depreciation of the leased
assets and interes! costs for the lease finance ara charged staterrant of profit ar ioss and othar comprehansive
neome.

. Inventories

Inventories are measured 8 the lower of cost and net reshizable valee (NRY) in compliance wih the
requirements of IAS 2 The cost of inventories comprises & costs of purchase costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in brnging he inventodes to their present kecation and condtion, Cost of invertories is
determined by using Inc weighted average cost farmusa. Wnere necessary, allowance s provided for damage,
obsolete and slow-moving fems to adyus! the camying vaue of mventories to the lower of oost and net
realizatie value, Net realizaie value s the esbmated seding price i1 the ordinary course of the business, iess
the estimated costs of completion and seling expenses.

Revenues

IFRS 15 establishes a comprahensive model for tireframe measuremant and criteria of revenue recognition
It replaces exisling revenue recognition guidance, including 1S 18 Reverue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyally Frogrammss.

The Company recognizes as revenue the amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the Company
sxpects 10 be entitied in exchange for goads o servicas when {(or as) it transiers contrel to the custome: To
achieve that core prnople, this standard establishes a five-step model as folows:

identify the contract with a customer;

identty the performance obligations in the cantract,

Delermme the ransadion prce,

Allocate the transaction price to the perdformance otligations in the contract: énd
Recognize revenue when (or as} the entity saisfies a performance oblication.

The Company genarates revanues from sales anc services. Consideration receved from sales and senvices
are initially deferred, included in céher iablities. Considenng the five steps mocel, the Company recognizes
ravenue in the pericd when the Company satisfies the pedarmarce obligation by transferring a promissd
goods or services 10 the customer
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F. Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans

In accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Banefils'. the Company operates a contributory pravident fund for its
elgible emoioyees. The fund is admiristrated by the Board of Trustees and [unded by equal contributions of
employees as well as the Company. The Fund is recognized by the Netaticnal Beard of Revenue, Sovernment
of Bangiadesh.

Defined Benefit Plans

Tha Comeany has 2 gratuity scheme, which cove's all of its permanent employess, The gratuity is payable
when the employees have completed minimum 7 (seven) years of service. Employess, leaving the
employmen's after seven compieted years shall eceive one & nalf monti's terminal basic salary for each
completed year Provision ‘or gratulty for the period has teen made on basss of actuaries o meat the fuure
obliganons under the scheme.

Woarkers' profit participation and welfere fund

Provision for workers” profit participation and wetfare fund has been made @ 5% of proft as per provision of
the Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (Amended in 2013) and payatie to these Funds and Bangladash Sramik
Kaityan Foundalion.

G. Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foregn cumencies are transiated to Taka at the foreign exchange rates pravailing on the dale
of transaction. A¥ monetary assets and fiabeities denominated in foreign curencies at reporting date are
transiated 0 Taka at the rates of exchange prevaling on thal date. Resuling exchange differences ansing on
the setflement ol monetary #ems or on transtating monesary deme are seccgnized in the statement of profit or
loss and other comgrehersive income as per IAS 21 “The Efects of Changes in Forsign Exchange Ralss”

H. Borrowing Cost

Bamrowing cost that can be dwectly attributatie to a qualifying esset is capitalized during construction pencd
as per requirement of IAS 23 “Borrowing Costs™. A qualifying asse! is an asset (hat necessarily takes a
substantial penod of time lo get ready for its intended use or sale. The borrowing costs that are directly
alvitutatie to the aoquisibon, construction of procuction of a qualifying assel are those borrowing cost that
woukd have been avosfed if the expenditurs or the qualifying asset nad not been made. Al oiher Cormowing
costs are recognized In statement of profit o l0ss and other comprenansive noeme n the period in which they
are incurred.

Borrowing costs that are not directly atinbutable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of a qualifying
aseet are recognized in profit or loss using the eftechve interest. it comprises interest expenses an borrowings,

|.  Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for reccgnizing ard measunng financial assets, financial lizbilites and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial tems. This standard replaces AS 38 Sinancial Instruments; Recognition
and Measurement.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 4. the Company has adopted consequential amendments o 1AS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements, which require impairment of financial assets to te presented in 3
separaie ing tem in the statement of profit o loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCH)

IFRS ¢ contains three prncipal classification categonies for financial assets: measured & amortised CogL,
FVQOC!I (Fair Vaive Through OCI) and FYTFL {Far Value Through Prcfit and Loss). IFRS 9 eliminates the
previous IAS 39 categores of neld to maturily, fogns and receivabies and avaiable for sale. IFRS 9 largely

refains the existing requirements in [AS 39 for the ctassification and measuremant of inancisl fistilijes e
13 TN n
A
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The adcpicn of IFRS 9 has not had a signdicand eflect on the Company's accounting polices related o
financial iabiliies.

Trade and other recevables hat were classified as loans and receivables under 'AS 33 are now ciassified at
amortsed oost. No matenal impact to the pimary inanaid statements has ansen on the adoption of IFRS §
and the Comgany has not restated prior pencds an adopson of iIFRS 9.

Impairment
I. Non-derlvative financlal assets

& fnancial asset not classfied & fair value throegh profit or 0SS s assessed at each repoding date 10
determine whether there s otjective evidenca that 1 is impairsd. A financlal asset is impaired if obective
2vidence of imparment as a resull of ane or more events thal occurred after the iniial recognition of the asset,
and that loss events had an impact on the estimaed future cash flows of that asset thal can be estmaled
refiably

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Company consxders evidence of impaarment for finanoal assets measured at amortised cost at bot a
specific asset and colaclive leved. An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amodised
cost is calculated as the difference between ds camying amaunt and the present value of the estimaled uture
cash flows discounted a3t the asset's original effective interest rale

Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment ‘osses on avalable-dorsale financia assets are recognized by redassifying the losses
accumutated in the fair value reserve in eguity 1o profit or loss. The cumulative loss that i3 reclassified from
equdy o profit or 10ss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principle repayment and
amortisafion, and the current fair value. less any impairment loss recognized prawviously in groli or less,

il. Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-finarcial assets, other than inventonies and deferred tax assels.
ara reviewed & each reporting date o determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then Ihe recoveratie armount of the asset is estimated, An impairment loss is recagnized if
the camyng amount of an asset or its retated cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount,

Provisions and contingent labilities and assets
i) Provisions

Tne preparaton of financial statemsants in canformty wih IAS 37 ‘Prowsions, Contingent Liabilties and
Contingenl Assets' requires managemer! to make eshimates and assumptions tnat affect the reported
amounts of reverues and expenses, assels and fiabilibes, and the disciosure requiremants for contingent
assets and liabilites during and at the date of the financial statements.

In accordanca with IAS 37, provisions are recogmized i the following situations:

{a) When tne Company has a present obligation as 3 resull of past event

{b} When it is peobable hat an cutflow of resources embodying econormic benefits will be required fo settie
the cbligation; and

{c) Reliable estimates car te made of the amount of the abligaton.

The provsions shown in the statement of financig positon are at an appropnate level with regaed to an

adequate provision for risks and uncerainties An amount recorded 25 a provision reprasents (he test estimate

of the probable expenditura required %o uifil the current obligaton on the date of statement of financial

position,
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Cther prowsions are valued in accordance with AS 37 Provisions. Contingent Liabilties and Contingent
Aggets Other prowisions compnse all recognizatle nsks from uncenain Habdities and anticipated losses from
pending transactions

ii) Contingent liability

A contingent liatlity 15 2 possivle obligaticn thal arises from past evens and whese exstence wil be confirmed
only by the occumence or non-cocurrence of ane of more uncertain future events nol whally within the control
of the Comgany, o« 3 peasent obfigation 1ha anses from past events but is not recognized because it is not
probable that an cutfiow of esources embodying economic tenefits will be required to settle the obigation; ar
the amaunt of the obiigation cannat be measured wih sufficent reliauility

Confingent acilites are not racogmzad in the statement of financal posiion of the Company. Moreover,
conlingencies arising from clams, itigations, assessments, fines, penallies, alc. are recorded when o s
probable that a iability has baen incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated

ili) Contingent asset

Contingen! asset 15 3 possitle asset thal anses frem past events and whose exisience wi be confirmed only
by the cccurmance or nan-cocumence of cne or more uncertain fuiwre events not wholy within the control of
the entity. The Company do2s net recegnlze consir gent asset.

Taxation

Income tax expenses rapresent the sumn of Ihe tax currently payable and deferred tax. incoms tax expense
recognzed in the siatement of proft or loss and other comprenensive income excepl 10 the extent that it
relates 1o items recognized dractly in equity In which case |t is recognized in equity.

i. Current tax:

Current 1ax Is the axoected 1ax payable o1 the laxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted ar
substantialy enacted at the repceting date, and any adustment to tax payable in respect of previous year,
Current tax orovisicn s manzaned at the rate of 30% of business moome and cther non-cperating mcome; at
the rate of 15% for capital gain and a1 the rate of 20% on divdend income

The tax currently payatte is based on laxable profit for the period. Taxable profit difers from net proft as
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense hat are taxabée or deductible in other periods and |t further excudes lems that are naver
taxable or deductible. The Cormpany’s liabAty for current tax is calculated using tne tax rates that have been
anacted or substantvely enacted 1l the date of statement of financial position

i. Deferrad tax:

Cefemed tax has been recognized in accordance with 1AS 12 Deferred tax s provided using the liabllity
mathod for lemporary differances between the carrying amount of assets and liabities for financal reporting
purposas and the amount used for taxation purpese. Deferred tax is determined at the efiective income tax
rale prevaiing at the reporting date.

a. Deferred tax assets

A ceferred tax asset is recogmzed for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the axtent that ¢ is probable that future taxable profts will be available against which they can be utilized.
Deferred fax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced lo the exdent that it is no longer
probabis that the related tax benefit wil be reaiized.
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b. Deferred tax liabilities
Provision is made al he effective fax rate appked on the amount of temporary difference between accounting
and fiscal written down value of fixed assets.

Related party transactions

As per |AS 24 Redatec party ransaction, paries are considered [0 be related if one of the party nas the abity
Le controf the other party or exercise sionificant influance over the other party in making financial and cperating
decisions. The Company carried out ransactions in the ordinary course of tusiness at an arm's length basis
at commercial rates with refated parties,

Event after the reporting pericd

Events after the reporting pencd that provide addtiona informadien about the Company's position at the
reponting date are reflected in the financial statements. Matenal events after the reporting pediod that are not
adjusting events are disclosed by way of note.

Risk Management
The Company has 2xpasure 1o the follovang risks from its use of financia instruments:

o Credit Rsks

e Liguidity Risks

o Market Risks

This note presents information aboul the Compary's axposura 1o gach of the above nsks, the Company's
cbjecives, pokcies and peocasses for measuing and managing fisk, and the Company's management of
capital.

The Managemen: has oversf responsitity for the establishment and oversight of the Company's fsk
managament framewodk, The Company's nisk management policies are established 1o identify and analyze
the nsks faced by the Company. to st appropriale risk limi's and controls. and to monitor riske and adherence
to limits, Risk management poicies and syslems are reviewed requlady 1o reflect changes in marke! conditions
and the Company’s activities,

Credit Risk

Cred|l risk  the risk of a financial loss %o the Company if a customer ar counterparty 1o 3 financial instrument
fa#5 1o meet its cortractual obligations, ard arises pnacipally from the Company's recevabies from cuslomers,
nstitutional and expor cuslomers ek

Managemen: has a credit policy in clace and the eqasure 1o credit risk is monitored on 2n ongoing tasss,

In mondaring credit risk, debtars are grouped according to whether they are an individual or legal entity, ageing
profie. maturlty and existence of previcus financiad difficuties. Accounts and other recemvables are mainly
refaled o the Company’s customers. The axposure of the Company to credit nsk on accounts receivables s
mairly influsnced Ly the incivdual payment charactenstics of the customers. Credil risk from fis receivatle
is very minimal. Credit risk does nol anse in respect any other receivables

Liquidity Risk

Liquedity nsk is the nsk that the Company wil not b atle to meel its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Coempany's approach 1o managing liquidty (cash and cash equivalents) is to enswre, as far as possible, that
it wel always have sifficient liquidity to meet 16 liabilities when due. undar both normal and stressed condtions,
without incuring unacceptabie losses of risking damage to the Comgany's reputation. Typically, the Company
ensures thal it has sufficient cash and cash equivalens t meel expected cperational axpenses, induding
financial obligations through peeparation of the cash flow forecast, prapared based on timekne of payment of
the financial oaligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient Eouidityfund to make the axpected paymant
within due date.

18
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Market Risk

Market risk i3 the rsk that. changes i marke! prces. such 36 forsign exchange rates and interest rates, wil
at‘ect the Company's income or the value of 2s hoidings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
manggement is to manage and control market nsk 2xposures within acceptable carameters

P. Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

The Board of Directers of the Company s responsibie for the preparation and fair presentzticn of the financial
statements in accordance with infernationl Financial Reporimg Standards (IFRSs). Section 183 of the
Companies Act. 1994 and clhar applicable laws ana regulations
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30 , 2022

4.00 Property, plant & equipment
Freahold propery
Land & land developments
Sullding
Plant and machinery
Ganerator & machine
Office equipment
IT equpment
Tools-hand & diagnostic
Furniture & fixture
Total
Vehicles

Amount in Taka )
0062022 | [ 30062021 |
3142109782 || 3.142,109.,782

255,090,821 286,745,670
64530420 44,928,103
19,672,589 21523828
7,808,712 14,341,390
28,415,487 28,967,699
50,955,649 53,713,951
2013947 18,825,398
3588797407  3,611,156,321
§9,372,252 110,903,023

T 3578,169,650  3,722,059,344

Tre Land owned by the Company was morigaged against the koan taken from the Shahjalal Islami Bank
Ltd , Bank Asa Lid.. Southeast Bank Lid. and Standard Chartared Bank Lid. During the year 2012 Bangla
Trac Limited revalued @s Land by an Independent Valuer, named Bangladesh Survey Cerporaticn.
Effective date of that evaluation was July €3, 2012, The methcdelogy of that valuation work was carried
on the basis fair market value. Hislorical cost was BODT 424 337,383(, Fair Market Value BDT
3,103,020,000/-. and Revaluation Surplus, as determined by the Valuer was BOT 2,678,632 607/ The
revaluzfion reserve is not distributable among the shareholders until the amount ig realized. Furthermore,

reserves have not income 1ax implication as it is not realized. For further detads please refer to Annexure -

A

5.00 Intangible assels
Software - ERP
Software-others

For further details please refer to Anpexure - 8

8.00 Capital work In progress

Buiking & olher constructions(Note No.-6.01)

6.01 Movement of capital work in progress
Balance as al July 1, 2021
Add: Cost incurred during the y2ar
Less: Adjustmentiiransier 1o assels
Balance as at June 30, 2022

110,209,376 122,305,252
1,406,185 1,638,204
111,615,541 124,148,486
7,362,720 6,383,054
8,383.054 9,975,684
3038678 2,810,439
2,057,012 6,403,069
7,362,120 5,383,054
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30 , 2022

7.00

m

8.01

Other non-current assets
Long term receivablefoan
Investment in subeidiaries (7 01)

Investment in subsidlaries (7.01)
Banglz Trac Power (Unit-1) Lid.
Banglz Trac Power {Unit-2) Ld,
Bangla Trac Rental Services Lid.
Paramount Btrac Energy Lid.

Inventories

Spare parts

Lube ol

Engine- CAT Generators
Machine- CAT/non CAT
WIP-materials

Inventory in transil

Mavement of Inventories

Opening inventory
Add: Purchases

Less: COGSssued
Closing inventory

[ Armount in Taka ]
| 30062022 ||  30-08-2021 |
1,064,938,876 854,938,876
2,115,849,801 2,316,849 801
3,161,788,677 3,161,788,677
731,649,900 731,649,900
573,199.901 573,159,901
200,000,000 400,000,000
512,000,000 512,000,000
2,116,849,801 2.316,849,801
1,680,559,837 1547523367
22,301,165 9974 530
65,152,150 121,250,448
54,387 876 122719438
302,405,451 308,748,763
771,766,133 792,612,813
T 2,006,572,722  2,902,829,317
2,502 829,377 2,474,133 487
2,935,401 587 3,382,490,393
5,838,230,984 5,656,523,840
3,031,658.242 2,053 794 503
2,806,572,122 2,902,829,377

Exslence, valuaion and completeness of above invenlories has been confimmed and cenified by
management. The Inventories of the Company are mortgaged aganst the Working Capital facilites taken
from the Standard Chartered 3ank Limited and Southeast Bank Limiec.

Accounts receivable

Prime product-Engne- CATinon CAT
Prime producl-Maching- CAT/non CAT
Support preducts-Spare parts

Support products-Sarvice

Others

Ageing of accounts receivable

95,640.370
225,988 598
1,389,482,218
732,250,234
254,732,231
2,698,102,649

108,220.4%4

350,533 881
1,299,207 136
549,624,751

In compi@ance with the requirement of paragraph 80 and 61 of IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements® Accounts Receivables have been analyzed and presented as fallows:
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Bangla Trac Limited

Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes

As at and for the year ended June 30, 2022

10.00

11.00

1200

Particulars

Loga than OC months

More than 08 but less than 12 months
Mora than 12 months

Advances, deposits & pre-payments
Advance 1o supplier

Loan 1o executive & others
Advarce against LC

Advance for land

Advarce instaiment-}erm loan
Advance mcome tax

Tax deducted at source

Adv VAT Cuslomer

VAT deposd

Frepaymenls

Cther asse!s

Loan to sister concern

Asian Cate Limited

Bangla Trac Power Limited

B.Trac Madiz Limited

Meaki Vas Limited

Mizki Media Limited

Miaki Green Power Limated

Bangia Trac Power {Unit-1) Limited
Bangla Trac Power (Unit-2) Limited
Tilfin 8cx Limited

Bangla Trac Rental Seraces Lid.
B-Trac Soluzlions Lie.

Thanex inlernat

Thane Systems

Cash & cash cquivalent:
Cash m hand
Cash at bank (12.01)

[ Amount in Taka ]
| 30062022 || 30-06-2021 |
1887517723 1.721,475 447
fi64,798 373 651,913,190
145,785 053 124,363,056
2,698,102,649 2,497,751,686
71,851,760 137,291.257
32941532 45102310
155,811,651 127,416.754
#18.233.242 218,293.242
: 13421 915
06,741,872 270,513,811
20,372,838 51,267,873

. 3,615,596
16,958,756 548 787
43,730,635 4,166,345
10,768,822 5,361,863
577,541,109 889,852,731
16,559,559 23,261,515
8,765,610 8,765,610
1,340,220 1,940,220
8518472 8618472
873,509 673,509
21,503,028 21,503,028
80,850,634 0,850,634
49,019,614 59,019614
27,828,042 27,828,042
104 856,361 10,725,440
9286294 9,266,294
50,000 50,000
1,580 1,560
329,952,923 252,523,958
1,840 955 3,607,909
12,585,645 235,988,153
14,526,610 239,596,072
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Polficies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30 , 2022

1201

13.00

Cash at bank
Short term deposit
Mercantile Bank Limited
Bkash Account

Dulch Bang'a Bank Limited
Prime Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limitad

IFIC Bank Limited

National Bank Limitad

Current deposit

Mercantile Bank Limited

Bank Al Falah Limited

The City Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited

Dhaka Bank Limited

Soutneast Bank Limited

iskami Bank Bangladesh Limited

United Commercial Bank Limded-Mohakhall Branch
United Commercial Bank Limied-Gulshan Branch
Premier Bank Limiled

One Bank Limied

Basic Bank Umited

Eastern Bank Limded

Communily Bank Limited

Shah'alal Is'ami Bank Limifed -Foreign Ex.Branch
NRB Bank Limited

Share capital
Authorized capital
2,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10C each

Issued & paid-up capital

1,001,999 Ordinary Shares of Tk 100 each
Cpening paid up capital

Add- Share issued during the year

Closing paid up cagital

Amount in Taka |

30-06-2022 ||  30-06-2021 |
12874 12874
100,742 137,634
443,279 922 580
2120,848 2425392
50,169 1,120,374
77,764 77,784
5,607 8697
2,821,311 4,703,205
378 2,901,988
42,247 42,247
38,168 154,839,043
5025,203 2229490
2176,602 7,627,361
985 724
713918 101,283
1,469 1,469
40,804 40,804
38,590 38,590
16,886 788,084
42692 6,396,828
250,777 259,777
235,887 4027915
75 51,364,055
2,130 2,180
1,196,973 22,140
9,864,274 231,284,868
12,685,645 235,988,163
200,000,000 100,000,000
9,999,500 99,999,800

200,000 -
100,199,900 93,999,900
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30 , 2022

Name of shareholders

3. Monammad Aminul Hague
b. Tanque Ekramul Haque

¢. Nazma Haque

1400 Revaluation and other reserve:
Revaluation reserve (14.01)

, Amount in Taka |
. 30-08-2022 || 30-08-2021 |
Number of shares Number of shares

490,100 490,100
508,898 509,899
2,000 -
1,001,999 999,999
2,574,411,435 2574411435
2,574,411,435 2,574,411,435

In the year of 2012, Bang'a Trac Limied revalued ils Land by an Independent Valuer, named Bangladash
Survey Corporation. Effeclive dale of thal revaluation was July 03, 2012, The methodology of that
valuation work was camed on the basis far market value. Historcal cost was BDT 424 337 383~ Fair
Market Value BOT 3.103,020,000%. and Revaluation Surplus as determuned by the Valuer was BOT
2,678,682,607/-. Tne revaluaticn reserve is not distribulable among the shareholders untit the amount is
realized. Furthermore, reserves have net income tax Impécation as it is not reaized

14.01 Revaluation reserve
Opening balance

Less: Reserve decrease due 1o disposal of assels

Closing Balance

15.00 Retained earnings
Opening balance

Less: Tax Paid (Assessment Year 2020-2021)
Less: Tax Paid (Assessment Year 2021-2022)

Add: Profit for the year

16.00 Long term liabilities
Term loan:
United Finance Limited
Shahjzla |stami Bank Limited
Dihaka Bank Limited
QOne Bank Limited
NRB Bank Limited
ONE Bank Limited
Bangladesh Finance Limited
Onaka Bank Liniled
|PDC Finance Limited

2574411 435 2,574,411435
2574411436 2,574,411,435
1,422,128,574 1,077,634 855
. (125,870 375)
(196,358,251) .
442,455,864 | 470,354,204
1,668,227,087 1,422,128, 574
5,045,851 24,783 695
321,230,384 456,064,364
16,638,107 23,166 879
345,424 302 331,251 615
210,213,924 249,249,336
355,700,502 446529 998
33,113.215 111,545 441
253,561,363 232,670,836
404,630,000 450,000,000
2,255,626,738 2,398 462,165

A
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Bangla Trac Limited

Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30 , 2022

17.00

18.00

Ti
Dhaka Bark Limited
BRAC Bank Limited

Lease Finance

IDLC Finance Limied
United Finance Limiled
Dhaka Bark Limited
Bangladesh Finance Uimited

Other long term liabilities
Employee Benafil Payable
Other payable

Deferred tax (asset¥lisbility
Carrying amount

Tax bass

Taxable temporary difference
Effective tax rate

Deferred tax Assets/(Liability)

18.00 Short term loan

Secured overdraft
Standard Chartered 3ank Limited
Dhaka Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

ONE Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

Southeast Bank Limiied
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited
Premier Bank Limited
Community Bank Limited
NRB Bank Lanited

Loan Trust

Standard Charered Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Laniled

Southeast Bank Limited

Premier Bank Limited

ONE Bank Limited

[ Amount in Taka |
| 30062022 || 30-06-2021 |
180,482,025 123,510,479
0966508 [| 41432125
191,440,533 170,042,604
10,289,155 14,386,860
4,200,082 5,629,383
10842913 14,839,834
- 2,801,063
25,332,150 38,359,120
545,784,333 502,331,562
106 558,906 117,350,452
652, 620,322,014
847 675,418 704,058,048
567,295,768 614,489 749
(80,379,852) (89,808,209)
30.00% 30.00%
(24,113,896) (26,862,490)
10,234 691 10,092,873
102,038,721 87,133,150
93,793,229 101,205,172
204,958 815 204,948,271
81,753.293 32,701,579
357,807,771 357,664,141
586,798,975 787,919,690
653,504,167 893,106,250
154,005,677 104,499,363
51,146,602 48,344,228
86,056,875 7 848,167
- 48272962
117,494,170 93320833
149,050,623 55787 4%0
8,131,074 10,119,238
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2022

19.01

21.00

22.00

Bank Asia Limided
Shahjalal Islami Bark Limited
BRAC Bank Limited

Time loan
Standard Chanered Bank Limited

Bark Asia Limded
NSE 8ank Limiled
Chaka Bank limited

Revolving loan
Standard Chartered Bank Limited

These represen! facllilies for shor term finances aranged

Amount in Taka

30-06-2022 30-06-2021
200,203,956 25,970,897
139,427 B84 99,923,848
- 9,317,758
14 564,160 20,000,000
708,844,015 705,277 468
31,048,097 31,461,260
226,001,380 244,286,468
120372611 149,699,900
4,120,246,876 4,128,901,136

from various bankefirancia institutions

apgregating o BDT 4,120.24 million (2021 BOT 4,128.90 million}. These are secured zgainst
hypothecation over properly, plant & equipment's and book debits of the Company along wih the
oorporale & personad quarantees of the directors, These camy mark-up at the rates ranging from 5% lo

12.00% per annum [2021: 8.75% 1o 14.00% per annum)

Loan from sister concem

Acormn Infrastructure Services Lid.
8-Trac Engingering Lid.

Bangla Trac Communication Lid,
B-Trac Technologies Ltd

Paramount Birac Energy Limitad

Acom Infrastructure Services Unie-2 Lid.
Bangla Trac Manufacturirg Ltd

Acom Infrastructure Services unit-3 Lid,

Long term loan (current maturity)
Diaka Bank Limited(Term Loan)
Bangladesh Finance Limited (Earlier BFIC)
Dhaka Bank Limitsd

IDLC Finance Limited

Accounts payable
Sundry creditors
Suppiers credit

26,887 811 16,887 9°1
273,382 998 266,112,998
27,108 329 424,489
8581373 6,581,373
73,766,301 62,846,657
4093955 9,093,955
50,811,671 :

57,189,860 57,189,850
522,722,398 450,037,243
4,622,305 4510250
3 4,081,037
5022,305 9.270,376

4 244 502

14,089,112
277,147,387 337,205,523
433 645489 760,711,451
715,102,876 1,007,016,974




Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30 , 2022

23.00

22.01

Ageing of accounts payables

| Amount in Taka |

(30082022 |[ 30-06-2021 |

In compliance with the requirement of paragraph 80 and 61 of IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements” Accoun's Payable have been analyzed and presenled in the following manner:

Less than £6 months
Mare than 06 but less than 12 menths
More than 12 months

Other liabilities & provisions
Prowision for expenses
income lax provision
Provision for WPPF (23.01)
Provision for Bad debt
Provision for Interest

Advance from customers
Advance Imvoicing

Payable lo employes

Payable Others

Provision for WPPF

Nel profit before tax

Bercentage of profit sharing as requived by law
Distributable profit for WPPF

510,718,217 799722724
200,779,902 289,301,123
4234757 8,893,127
715,792,876 1,097,916,974
6302556 15,871 607
158,848 040 128,596,782
23501918 50,919,115
3137450 3137450
176,503 840 162,448.140
260.051.477 285671 881
71,560 71,851
21642414 16,333 961
134,202 827 72426.34%
T a— R
493 540,234 524 352065
5% 5%
23,501,818 5989,147
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policles and Explanatory Notes
As at and far tha year ended June 30, 2022

24.00

Revenues

Prime product- Generator & Maching
Suppart products- Spare pans & Lube oll
Suppart products- Services

Cost of revenues

i) Prime cost

Broductcost

Prima product: Generator & maching
Support praducts-Spave parls & Lube ol

Service Enqineers Salenias & Allowance

il) Direct cost

Caonsumables tems of workehop
Seniice engineers alowance
Carnage inward

Insuranca premium (warehouse)
Repair and maintanance

Direct VAT

Fuel & too's of servica vohicle
Repairing expense of service vehice
Depreciafion

Amoriization

Total (+il)

Administrative expenses
Salary 8 alowances
Diractor remunerabon (26.01)
Security expenses
Crassiunifiorm

Foreign traned
Entertanment

Fuei & tod

Repair and maintenance:
Buiding & constructon
Fumiure 5 fodure

Offica equipment

Sant & machinary
Vehicles

Books & periodic
Techaical service

Utdilies

Rant

Postage & courar
Profeasicnal fees & expenses
Registration & rerewal

Amount in Taka
552,572,468 1,074,285.404
3,642.964,094
278.816,927
797,748,744 503,671,304
2.233,308,498 2,054,123.108
3,031,658,242 2.953,794,503
253701729 223,350.751
3285449971 3.1487,145254
25,007,651 20,474,763
37,768,029 37275430
9,508,382 8,204 911
9,975,273 16,127,855
1,064,835 981,782
43,047,580 104,594,548
14,527 443 12,525,868
5,112,867 8736315
5,390,131 72,253,208
12,322,845 13,830,004 |
224,355,018 206,204,172
3,509,804,967 3,483,440,026
374,563,673 346,637,600
7433355 5,933,600
3085527 12,443,950
1517541 1,656,823
12,500 12,805
4779735 3033883
5,347,888 7,504,008
3018234 3516,958
143,980 47,290
4773876 5,027,977
2722562 4,268,325
4,308,976 5,370,401
88,857 57.257
1,048,962 1,080,711
14,827,075 11,895,733
11,914,082 19,385 880
1,979,846 2,759,864
1,346,874 1,246,160
6,137.183 5,514,005
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Bangla Trac Limited

Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2022

20

2100

Deprecalion
Cther Expensas

Directors Remuneration Paid 1o the following directors for their full time service

2. Mohammad Arirul Haque
b. Tarque Ekramul Hogue
¢ Nazma Hague

Amount in Taka
24525725 22835012
1,147 472 540,477

475241075 464351953

1,493 3% 2,133,600
3,960,000 4,800,000
1,960,000 .

74333 6,933,600

The Direciors are nat pad any other amounts of any other parquasites. There is no amangement for past empioyment benefit

for any of the Directors.

Selling & distibution expenses
Tender schedule

Free sampling

Discount ~Cash

Other incomelfloss)
Interest-stafl loan

Gaindoss on saies of faed assals
Intgrest from Bark

Disposd income- other ilems
Dscount received

Compensaton realzation

FC Exchanga Gain/(Loss)

Other Recaipts

Financlal expanses
Irdarest- long Yerm logn
Inferost- working capital boan
Lease cxpenses

Excise duty

Other Bank Charge

Current tax
Othar incomeiother than Drddend)
Dnidend ncome

Addibonal provisian on Business Income

Current Tax Expense

6,315 302,550
14,576,184 16,200818
38,427 446,701
14,960,926 17,040,178
478 427 564,220
3270418 20,798
276,179 1452613
4.269,020 291,848
85198 15,634
58510 50,060
{11,344 676) 504,163
161,756,238 153,000,000
5,563,840 2,486,645

154,412,955 150,405,181

561,464,287 §29,881,517

73,252,964 94,964,436

4625543 6,623,781
5,836,842 6527328
27,280.231

- 1,648,554

30351248 30,600,000
- 2.668,192

30,351,243 34,536,748

During e year, current tax of Bangla Trac Lig. s BOT 126,402,671+ net off deferred tax income after considering provision
of Income tax an Dividend incorra. Hence, 23 of June 30, 2022 provision for income 1ax was increased to BOT 158,848 040V
axists in the Financial Statement under Nota no. 21.00 "Cher Liabitlies & Provsions”, which is adequate against currant tax
isbiity for tha sad year As such, no provision for income tax was mada for e Business income in he financial staiements of

the Company
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2022

31.00 Defemed tax Incomei{expensas)

Opening balance of daferred tax Lizbiity
Closing balanca of deferred tax Liability

Deferred Tax incomal{Expense)

3200 Related party transaclions

Amount in Taka

(26,862.490) {32,300 562)

(24.113,895) {26,882.40)
2,768,584 5,918,082

Ouwring the yaar ended 30 June 2022 the Compary entared info a number of transactions wrh releted partes  All these
yansactions have tsken piace in an &rm length basis. Neme of the re'ated names, nature of these tansactians and amounl
merecf hava been set out delow in accordance with tha provisions of [AS 24' Retaled Party Disclosures

Intercompany Loan Account:
Name of the company Noture of Opening Debit Crodit Closing balance
Gate Lid Loan 23261515 | 1.288.272 £.000.228 16.559,559
Mizki VAS Lid Loan 8613472 . - 8,613,472
|Miald Media Lid. Loan 573,508 573,508
|Mics Groen Power Lid Loan 21,503,028 . . 21,503,028
|Bangla Trac Communications Lid, Loan (424,489 316,160 27,000,000 {27,108,329)
|8.Trac Power Lid Loan 8,785,610 . . 8,765,610
|B-Trac Media Limned Loan 1,340,220 - . 1,840,220
|B-Trac Technologies Lid. Loan {6.581.373)| 20,000.000 22,000.000 (8.521.373)
|Bangla Trac Power (Unit-1) Umied | Loan 80,850,634 . . 80,850,634
|Bangia Trac Pawer (Unit-2) Limted |  Loan 59,013,614 - 10,000.000 49,015,614
|Paramount Birac Energy Limitsd Loan (62.845,657)| 10,580 356 21,500,000 (73,766,301)
{Tiffin Box Limided Loan 27 828,042 - . 27 828,042
|B-Trac Soluations Lid. Loan 9,286,204 - . 978624
Unit-2 Loan (9.593.955)| 65,000,000 80,000,000 (4,583 955)
Thanex Intemational Loan 50,000 - - 50,000
Thana Systam Loan 1,580 - - 1,580
Bangla Trac Rental Sanvces Lid. Loan 10,726,440 | 319,520,921 26,400,000 304,856,361
Acan Limited Loan | (317.320452)| 16.085.881 5.255,135 (105.558.808)
Infrastructure Servees Lid. Loan {16.887.911) - 10,200,000 (28,887,811)
B-Trac Engineerng Lid. Loan {296,112,998) 22 730,000 . (273.362,698)
{Acoen Inirestruchere Senices Lt eit-3 Loan (57.169.850) . - (57.189,860)
Trac Manufachuring Lid. Loan - 3,188,329 54,000,000 (50,811,671}
I Total (314,903,737)| 458,730,719 243,155,363 (99,328,381}
Related Parties: Receivable
| Name of the Partles Nature of |  Opening Closing Batance
|B-Trac Engneecing Lirriled Receivabie 5996212 5,851,970
|B-Trac Solutions Lid Raceivable 526,327 §26.327
I;u_m Trac Communicanons Ltd.__| Receivable 255,420 442011
B-Trac Technologies Lid, Receiveble 300,751 344,753
|Tiffn Box Limbed Recoivablo 4,786,202 5,105,710
|B.Trac Power Lid Recsivable 85,325 86.325 |
|Bangls Trac Power (Unii-1) Limited | Recewvable | 120,787,663 56,582,827
[Bangla Trac Power (Unit-2) Limitad | Recerable | 137 451,485 76,010,388
[Mizic Green Power Lid Recewvable 1,871,204 1.571,201
|Accem infrasuctums Servoes Ld.UnkZ | Receivable 30,454 30454
2
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Poficies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended Jupe 30, 2022

Amount in Taka
1~
|Bandia Trec Renta Sarvices Lie. | Recevabie | 275,593,306 | 167 462.107 308,472,148 134,583 214
Acor Infrastruciure Sendces Lid. | Receivabie 5,858.940 - X 5,858,949
Total 553,562,285 | 223,532,085 478,701,411 297,392,939
Related Parties: Payable
Name of the Parties Neture of | Opening Debit Credit Closing Balance
B-Trac Engueening Limiled Payable 35003258 | 13454963 14 (42509 35861,234
a Trac Communicalicns Ltd, Payable 4919436 42 239355 7,271,758
B-Trac Technoiogies Lid Payabie 20,183,241 . 5011.780 25,185,021
B-Trac Sowtion Ltd Payabia 3,368,115 . 9531 3.377,746
Thane System Payabla 1,890,362 4020 871,20 2,727,542
Total 65,454,422 | 13.530.216 22,329,085 74,253,301
Related Parties: Revenue
| Name of the Parties Nature of Transaction 2021.2022 2020-2021
&-Trac Engnaering Limsed Spere Parls Engine & Service 1,645,847 1,574 803
Bangla Trac Communications Lid._ [Spare Parts Engine & Service 168,591 117,742
8-Trec Technologies Ltd. |Spare Parts & Sarves 35,002 80,293
iffin Box Limiad |Spare Parts Engine & Servce 309,508 1,764,338
Bangla Trac Power (Unit-1) Limted_[Spare Parts Engine & Service 31,878,641 24,955,070 |
Bangla Trac Power (Unit-2) Limaed |Spare Parts Engine & Service 22,014,389 69,368,798
Banqla Trac Rental Services Lid.  |Spare Parts § Service 187 462.107 104,175,579
Acorn Infrasiructure Senvices Lid._ [Spare Parts 8 Servica . 119,604
Total 223,532,065 202,187,323
Related Partios: Purchases
| Name of the Parties Nature of Transaction 2021-2022 2020-2021
|B-Trac Engnasring Limrsg Spare Parts 14,042,929 46.479.810
[Bengla Traz Communicalions Lid.  [Servica 2,393,555 3,854,271
|B-Trac Technologies Lid. IT Equipment 5.014,780 13,046,234
|B-Traz Sowsion Lid IT Equipmen 0,531 :
Thane Syslem ITES 871,000 1,355,207
otzl 22,329,095 67,735,522 |
Relationghip with related parties

AJ] tha abova related parties are sisler cancem having common directors.

FANSACTION With

Curing the year unto 20 Jure 2022 no loans were provided 1o Directors.

During the period ended Juna 30, 2019 the Campany entered Inlo a numbes of ransactons with related partiss. All these
ransacticns have takan place @ an arm length basis, Name of the related parties, nature of thess transactions and amount
Iharan! have been set cut bedow in accardance with the provisons of 'AS 24: Related Party Disclosures

Relationship with related parties

All the anove ralsted parties are sister concern haning comman diraclors.

v
A SHAKA
W, i~
el Ol

%
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for the year ended June 30, 2022

33.00

3500

Amount in Taka

g wnnn 01N

CARD ALY ARl b Aot 3
During the period unéo June 30, 2012 no loans werz prowcea to Directors.

Capital expenditure commétment
Thece were no capial expenditure contracted or incurted o pravided for as at Juna 30, 2022 There were no matesial capital
oxpendiiure authorized by the Board or contracted ‘o as o June 30, 2022

Credit facility

No credt factites were avasled by the Company under any contract other than bank credit faclity and trade credit, which took
nlacs in the ardinary coursa of busnass.

Financial risk management
The Company has axposure to the following fisks from ils usa of financial instruments.

Credit risk
In monitoring cred® risk, debtors are grouped accorting to their risk profile, Le. their logal slats, inancial condtica, ageng
profie etc. Accounts recenvable are mainly refated t sates of finished goods

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represanied by the carmying amount of each Financial Assat in the Stalement of
Financial Postion,

Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financia! assels represants the maximum credil axposure, The maximum exposure 1o crech sk al the
reporiing date was

[ 30-0e2022 ||  30-08-2021 |
Accounts Roceivable 2696,102.648 | [ 2,497.751 688
Advance, Deposits and Pre-payments 877541109 683,852,731
Cath and Bark Balances 14,526,610 238,596,072

3,590,170,368 3,627,200,489
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Bangla Trac Limited
Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
As at and for tho year ended June 30, 2022

37.00 Market Risk
Interast rale nek

Interes! ra%e risk s the risk that anses due lo changes n interes! rates on borrowings. The Company is
not significantly exposed to fluctuation in inferest rates as it has fixed interest bearing financial liabilities

as al reparting date

1l ification and fair values

Fair value of financiai assels and liabilites fogether with camying amount shown in the statemert of

financial position are as follows:

Receivables and cash
Accounts receivaties
Cash and bank batances

Liabilities carried at amortized costs
Term loan-non current portion

Finance lease obigation (Net of currant partion}

Deferred liability for employee benefits
Accounts payacie
Cther liabdities and provision

Receivables and cash
Acoounts recelvables
Cash and bank balances

Liabilities carried at amortized costs:
Term loan-non cumrent portion

Finance lease obligation (Net of current portion)

Deferred liabiity for employee benefits

Accounts payable
Other latvities and provision

30.06.2022
Carrying
smount Fair Value

2,698,102.643  2,608,102,649
14,526,610 14,526,610

2,285,525,738  2.255626,738
25,332,150 25,332,150
23501916 23501916
715792876 715792878
841085470 841,085,470

30.06.2021
ng
amount  Fair Value

2497751886  2497,751.686
239,596,072 239,596,072

2,398,452,165  2.396,462,185
38,358,120 38,359,120
60,919,115 60,919,115
1,097,916974 1097916974
765,537,056 785,537,056
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38.00

L o T2 g

Dhaka
Date:

Events after the Reporting Period
No amount cf money was spant by the Company for compensating any member of the Board for special
service rendered,

There was no claim agamst the Company not acknowledged as debt on June 30, 2022.

There was ro Bank Guarantee issuad by the Company en behalf of the Directors,

;’3;; was no credil faciities available to the Company under any contract, not svailed of as on June 30,
There was no expenses incurred In foreign exchange on account of Royalty, Professional & Advisory
Fee, Interest and Brokerage & Commission elc.,

Thers were no expenses on account of Misce®aneous/General Expenses.

The financial statements were zuthorized for issue by Board of Director who has the power to amend the
financigl statements after Issue. There & no other significart event thal has occurred tetween the
Balanca sheet date and the date when the financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company,

17 NV 1022
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(c) Selected ratios as specified in Annexure-D:

Ratios
Formula 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio (Current Asset/Current 1.64 2.92 2.33 1.55 1.81
Liability)
Quick Ratio (Current Asset- 1.17 244 1.83 113 1.24
Inventory/Current Liability) ' ' ' ' '
Operating Efficiency Ratios
Accounts Rece.:lvables (Net Bevenue/Average 126 210 1.66 136 1.43
Turnover Ratio Receivables)
Inventory Turnover Ratio (Cost of Goods Sold/Average 2.00 4.15 3.58 2.17 1.67
Inventory)
Asset Turnover Ratio (Net Revenue / Average Total 0.13 0.25 0.30 0.26 0.26
Assets)
Profitability Ratios
Gross Margin (Gross Profit/Revenue) 31.43% 31.49% 28.84% 26.45% 30.88%
Operating Profit Margin (Operating Profit/Revenue) 24.61% 20.40% 22.26% 17.96% 23.68%
Net Profit Margin (Net Profit/Revenue) 14.46% 12.36% 10.16% 7.99% 15.50%
Return on Assets (Net Profit/Total Assets) 1.82% 3.17% 2.95% 2.04% 4.43%
Return on Equity (Net Profit/Shareholders 99.50% 62.19% 751% 9.54% 14.91%
Equity)
Earnings per Share (Net Profit/Weighted Average 19,944.32 32,971.11 1.58 117 2.15
Number of Shares)
EBITDA Margin (EBITDA/Revenue) 56.83% 61.02% 52.46% 46.52% 50.95%
Solvency ratios
Debt to Total Assets (Total Debt/Total Assets) 0.01 0.09 0.15 0.27 0.16
. (Total Debt/Total
Debt to Equity Shateholders' Equity) 0.37 1.71 0.39 1.27 0.55
Times Interest Earned Ratio (Operating Profit/Net Interest - 7.48 3.31 3.39 3.00
Expense)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio | (EBITDA/Total Debt Service) - 1.66 0.89 0.26 0.37
Cashflow Ratios
. (Net Operating Cash
Net Operating Cashflow per | g, /weiohted Average 3950.29 99567.41 5.84 2.68 4.89
Share (NOCFPS)
Number of Share)
NOCFPS to EPS ratio (Net Operating Cash Flow per 0.20 3.02 3.68 2.29 2.27
Share/EPS)
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(d) The issuer shall include comparative income statements and balance sheet and
aforementioned ratios for immediately preceding five accounting years of the issuer in the
prospectus. If the company has been in existence for less than five years, the above-mentioned
inclusion and submission will have to be made for the period of existence of the company.

There is no other listed companies in Dhaka Stock Exchange with similar line of business
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